
Tommy Dunn 
Chairman, District Five 

Brett Sanders 
V. Chairman, District Four

PO Box 8002, Anderson, South Carolina 29622-8002 | www.andersoncountysc.org 

John B. Wright, Jr. 
District One 

Glenn Davis 
District Two 

Ray Graham 
District Three 

Jimmy Davis 
District Six 

M. Cindy Wilson
District Seven

Renee Watts
Clerk to Council 

Rusty Burns 
County Administrator 

AGENDA  

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 

Special Presentation Meeting 

Tuesday, November 2, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. 

Historic Courthouse 

101 S. Main Street 

 Anderson, South Carolina 

Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. RESOLUTIONS/PROCLAMATION

a. R2021-052 A Resolution to honor the contribution of our Local Law Enforcement Agencies;
and other matters related thereto.

3. ADJOURNMENT

 AGENDA  

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 

Tuesday, November 2, 2021 at 6:30 p.m. 

Historic Courthouse 

101 S. Main Street 

 Anderson, South Carolina 

Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  Hon. John B. Wright, Jr. 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES          October 19, 2021 

4. CITIZENS COMMENTS  Agenda Matters Only 

5. REPORT FROM FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING HELD FRIDAY OCTOBER 29, 2021

a. Bid #22-017 Front Entry Construction Project (1428 Pearman Dairy Road Building)
b. Donation to City of Belton
c. Sale of Real Property-126 North McDuffie Street
d. Transfers
e. Executive Session

 Discussion of negotiations incident to 
 proposed purchase of properties 

Hon. Brett Sanders (allotted time 10 minutes)



 

 

Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, November 2, 2021 

Page 2 

 

   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6. ORDINANCE THIRD READING:  
 

a. 2021-057 An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance, as adopted July 
20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 20.5 acres from C-2 (Highway 
Commercial District) to I-2 (Industrial Park District) on a parcel of land, identified as Highway 81 North & 
Evergreen Rd in the North Pointe Precinct shown in Deed Book 4293 page 163. The parcel is further identified as 
TMS #144-00-04-008. (DISTRICT 4)  

Ms. Alesia Hunter (allotted 5 minutes) 
 

b. 2021-058 An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance, as adopted July 
20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 16.22 acres from C-2 (Highway 
Commercial District) & R-15 (Single Family Residential) to R-M (Multifamily Residential) on a parcel of land, 
identified as Royal American Rd and Driftwood Way, in the Denver-Sandy Springs Precinct shown in Deed Book 
2462 page 186. The parcel is further identified as TMS #93-02-02-060, TMS #93-02-02-062, and TMS #93-02-02-
063. (DISTRICT 5)  

Ms. Alesia Hunter (allotted 5 minutes) 
 

c. 2021-060 An Ordinance to amend the 2010 joint county industrial and business park agreement with 
Greenville County, South Carolina so as to enlarge the park, and other matters relating thereto.  

 
Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

  
7. ORDINANCE SECOND READING:  
 

a. 2021-062-An Ordinance to provide approval for Anderson County to grant a perpetual and non-exclusive   easement 
unto Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC. for the real property being 0.80 acres, common area, Halter Drive, Piedmont, 
SC 29673 bearing Anderson County tax map number 237-08-03-001 to facilitate the relocation of the electric and 
communication lines; and other matters related thereto. 

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 
 

b. 2021-063-An Ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of a joint county industrial and business park 
(2010 park) of Anderson and Greenville Counties so as to enlarge the park; and other matters related thereto (Project 
Storybook) (PUBLIC NOTICE HEARING-THREE MINUTE TIME LIMIT) 

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 
 

c. 2021-064 An Ordinance authorizing an amendment to an existing fee in lieu of tax agreement between Anderson 
County, South Carolina and Milliken & Company to extend the investment period for an additional five years, in 
return and expectation for additional investment in the county, and to provide for the provision of certain special 
source revenue credits/infrastructure improvement credits; and other matters related thereto. 

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minute) 
 

d. 2021-066- An Ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of a joint county industrial and business park 
(2010 park) of Anderson and Greenville counties so as to enlarge the park; and other matters related thereto. 
(Milliken) 

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 
 

 

 



 

 

Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, November 2, 2021 

Page 3 

 

   
 

 

 

 

8. FIRST READING  
 
a. 2021-065 An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance, as adopted July 

20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 29.01 acres from C-1 (Commercial 
District) to R-M1 (Mixed Residential District) on a parcel of land, identified as 29.01 acres on Highway 81 N in the 
Hopewell Precinct shown in Deed Book 11963 page 00015. The parcel is further identified as TMS #145-00-06-
001. (DISTRICT 7) 

Ms. Alesia Hunter (allotted 5 minutes) 
 

b. 2021-070 An Ordinance authorizing the transfer of real property located at 29 McAlister Street, Williamston, South 
Carolina (TMS #245-18-01-035) to the Town of Williamston; and other matters related thereto. 

Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 
 
c. 2021-071 An Ordinance authorizing the execution and delivery of an agreement by and between Anderson County, 

South Carolina and [Project Aardvark], with respect to certain economic development property in the County, 
whereby such property will be subject to certain payments in lieu of taxes, including the provision of certain special 
source credits; and other matters related thereto. (TITLE ONLY) 

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 
 

9. RESOLUTIONS:  

   
a. R2021-053 A Resolution to adopt redistricting criteria for Anderson County Council districts based upon the 2020 

US Census; and other matters related thereto.  
 Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
10. APPOINTMENTS: None 
      
11. REQUESTS BY COUNCIL    

a. Iva Museum (roof repair) District #3  
b. Anderson Chapter National Federation of the Blind (All Districts) 

             
12. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 

       
13. CITIZENS COMMENTS               Non-Agenda Matters 
 

14. REMARKS FROM COUNCIL 

 

15. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

 
 
 

 
Anyone who requires an auxiliary aid or service for effective communication, or a 

modification of policies or procedures in order to participate in this program, service 

or activity please contact the office of the program, service or activity as soon as 

possible but no later than 24 hours before the scheduled event. For assistance, please 

contact the Clerk to Council at (864) 260-1036. 



RESOLUTION 2021-052 

A RESOLUTION TO HONOR THE CONTRIBUTIONS OF OUR LOCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT 

AGENCIES; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

 

WHEREAS, provision of law enforcement services is a primary function of local 

government; and,  

WHEREAS, an effective and comprehensive public safety infrastructure is necessary to 

sustain for a healthy, vibrant community; and,  

WHEREAS, the citizens of our community are served by the Anderson County Sheriff’s 

Office as well as the police departments representing our several municipalities; and  

WHEREAS, thanks to the leadership of our local law enforcement agencies, our 

community has seen significant declines in offenses such as robbery, burglary, and 

motor vehicle theft; and,  

WHEREAS, the overall interests of public safety are best served when there exist strong 

working relationships and a culture of cooperation among local agencies; and 

WHEREAS, Anderson County Sheriff Chad McBride and Anderson City Police Chief Jim 

Stewart work side-by-side in their efforts to maintain the public order in the Anderson 

metro area; and, 

WHEREAS, both agencies are known and respected for their efforts to build positive 

relationships with the public and going above the call of duty in their service to the 

citizenry;  

WHEREAS, a prime example of the commitment to service manifest in these leaders is 

through the work of their respective community foundations, which assist families of 

fallen officers and support local charities in an effort to build a better Anderson County; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Anderson County Council hereby recognizes 

Sheriff Chad McBride and Chief Jim Stewart for not only a job well done, but also for 

their common efforts towards a brighter future. We recognize also the officers and 

leadership of all Anderson County law enforcement agencies for their bravery and 

being there for the people in the hour of greatest need. 

RESOLVED in a meeting duly assembled this 2nd day of November, 2021. 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY     

   

_______________________________          ________________________         ______________________ 

Tommy Dunn, Council Chairman         John B. Wright, Jr. District 1   Glenn Davis, District 2  

                                        

____________________________          _____________________           ___________________ 
Ray Graham, District 3                              Brett Sanders, District 4           Jimmy Davis, District 6 

 

________________________  ATTEST: 

M. Cindy Wilson, District 7                      _________________________            _____________________ 

                                                                  Rusty Burns                                      Renee Watts 

                                                                  County Administrator                      Clerk to Council 



State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL
 

COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING

OCTOBER 19, 2021

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
GLENN DAVIS
RAY GRAHAM
JIMMY DAVIS
BRETT SANDERS
JOHN WRIGHT
CINDY WILSON

ALSO PRESENT:
RUSTY BURNS
LEON HARMON
JANIE TURMON
RENEE WATTS
      



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - October 19, 2021
2

1 TOMMY DUNN:  At this time I’d like to
2 call the regular Anderson County Council meeting of
3 October 19th to order.  I’d like to welcome each and
4 every one of you here.  Thank y’all for coming out
5 tonight to support the county.  
6 At this time I’m going to ask Council Lady Ms.
7 Cindy Wilson if she’ll lead us in invocation and pledge
8 of allegiance.  If we’ll all rise, please.
9 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
10 First I would like to ask if we could observe a moment
11 of silent to hopefully comfort and to recognize the
12 losses of Chairman Dunn and attorney Leon Harmon and
13 their families.
14 MOMENT OF SILENCE
15 CINDY WILSON:  Now, may we pray.
16 INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE BY CINDY WILSON 
17 TOMMY DUNN:  Are there any
18 corrections to be made to the October 5th, 2021 minutes
19 of the council meeting?  Hearing none ---
20 CINDY WILSON:  May I make a motion that
21 we accept the minutes of October 5th as presented.
22 TOMMY DUNN:  Have a motion by Ms.
23 Wilson to accept the minutes of October 5th, 2021 as
24 presented.  Do we have a second?
25 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
26 JOHN WRIGHT:  Second.
27 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Glenn Davis. 
28 All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed
29 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
30 Before we move on any further, I want to take this
31 opportunity to welcome Ms. Watt who is filling in until
32 we find a permanent replacement.  She’s here tonight. 
33 Ms. Janie has been helping out and we appreciate the
34 job she’s doing and appreciating Ms. Watt coming in and
35 helping us out the last few weeks.
36 I also want to welcome -- and I apologize -- I’m
37 the world’s worst if I butcher your name, but Mr.
38 Michael Zarowski (phonics).  Is that it?  Close? 
39 Zakerski (phonics); okay.  You’re here with a boy scout
40 troop.  What troop are you with?  Troop 96.  Well
41 welcome.  Hope y’all have a pleasant night.  Thank
42 y’all for coming.
43 Moving on now to citizens comments.  When Mr.
44 Harmon, our attorney, calls your name, you have three
45 minutes this first go-around.  Please state your name
46 and district for the record.  And this first go-around,
47 keep items only on agenda items, only this first go-
48 around.  It’s on the agenda.  Mr. Harmon.
49 LEON HARMON:    Mr. Chairman, the
50 first speaker is Brent Powell.



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - October 19, 2021
3

1 BRENT POWELL:    My name is Brent
2 Powell.  I’m with District 6, Mr. Davis.  I want to
3 speak tonight, respectfully, on the District 6 dealings
4 with development.
5 There are some numbers that are staggering that are
6 -- blows my mind.  We only have Spearman Elementary
7 School; Powdersville Middle, Elementary and High
8 School; Wren Middle School, Wren High School, Concrete. 
9 We only have five hundred and thirty-eight available
10 spots available for students.  Concrete Elementary
11 School has a capacity of eight hundred.  They already
12 have eight hundred and seven students enrolled.  So
13 with that five hundred and thirty-eight available spots
14 in our schools in our district, there has been the last
15 few months or over the last year approximately eleven
16 hundred homes that have been approved by different
17 developers in our district.
18 Now, according to Anderson School District, those
19 houses constitute 1.5 kids per house.  We know that
20 some houses won’t have any kids; some houses will have
21 six kids.  So if we do the math on that, that’s one
22 thousand six hundred and fifty kids that will be vying
23 for five hundred and thirty-eight spots in our school
24 system.  
25 At the Anderson County Planning Commission last
26 week, the representative for the school district said
27 there is plans for building new schools, but it’s seven
28 to eight years out.  
29 So my plea to you guys tonight is not just the
30 traffic, not just the higher crime rates, the tax that
31 we have on the existing sheriff’s department already, 
32 we’ve had two cemeteries that have been desecrated in
33 the last six months, eight months.  We have rising
34 crime, like I’ve said.  Our fire departments, Wren and
35 Powdersville, each runs over three hundred calls a year
36 already and they’re volunteers.  How much more traffic,
37 how much more fires, how much will that put on our fire
38 departments, our police departments and our schools?  
39 So what I’m asking for tonight is we’ve asked the
40 Planning Commission for help.  Now I’m coming to you
41 guys and asking y’all for help in our community. 
42 Something needs to be done, tragically needs to be
43 done.  We know growth is coming.  We’ve not idiots. 
44 It’s inevitable.  But we need something to help us
45 where we can get that growth to where our
46 infrastructure can get to the growth that’s coming, and
47 we know it’s coming.  So I’m asking you guys for help
48 tonight in that.  
49 Thank you.
50 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Harmon.



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - October 19, 2021
4

1 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, next
2 speaker is Jeremy McCall.
3 JEREMY MCCALL:  Good evening.  Same
4 agenda matter for Mr. Davis’s district.  I won’t rehash
5 the stuff that Mr. Powell just mentioned about the
6 schools.  Obviously overcrowded.  The traffic.
7 One of my biggest concerns is having been at the
8 meeting last week and seeing how that meeting
9 transpired.  The commission has grown in numbers, with
10 two at-large members.  I, myself, was a part of that
11 process.  And I think, though, that there have been
12 unintended consequences of adding those two at-large
13 members.  And I think that those unintended
14 consequences are before those members were added, the
15 Planning Commission would hear the will of the people
16 that would come.  So if something came before the
17 commission in a district then this room would be filled
18 with people and they would come up here and they would
19 speak for or against the proposed development and the
20 members of the commission would then decide upon what
21 they were going to do.
22 Last week, every single person that stood right
23 here, myself included, spoke against the proposed
24 development that was subsequently passed, and it was
25 passed, in large part, due to the two new members that
26 were added that voted for this project.  
27 Now, again, all of the stuff that Mr. Powell laid
28 out obviously is something that I would hope that every
29 member of that commission would listen to.  I have
30 children in those schools.  And so -- in fact, the one
31 that Mr. Powell referenced being at 807 and a capacity
32 of eight hundred, I have two children in that school
33 right now and one yet to come.  And we keep getting
34 deeper in the hole before we ever realize how deep the
35 hole truly is.  
36 So we’re already working at a deficit, and we don’t
37 even know how deep that deficit is, and we keep adding
38 more and more and more to it.  So, again, I’m here,
39 just like Mr. Powell, asking for your help.  I don’t
40 know if what was done with the at-large members can be
41 undone.  I think there’s unequal representation amongst
42 the districts now.  Some districts have two votes.  The
43 rest of the five districts have one vote.  So if it
44 can’t be undone, then I would ask that the council
45 consider adding an additional member to each district
46 so that each district has the same voting rights as the
47 next.  
48 I appreciate what y’all do and thanks for your
49 time.
50 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Harmon.



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - October 19, 2021
5

1 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, no one
2 else is signed up.
3 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr. Harmon.
4 Moving on to item number 5, Anderson County
5 Planning Commission meeting concerns.  Mr. Davis.  And
6 that’s Mr. Jimmy Davis.
7 JIMMY DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chair and
8 members of council.  I first want to say thank you to
9 Mr. Powell and Mr. McCall for coming to speak.  We’ve
10 had several conversations over the last week or so
11 concerning the October 12th Planning Commission
12 meeting.  
13 At this meeting we had a lot of things that were
14 kind of -- as far as I’m concerned and I’ve been
15 involved that had never happened before.  We actually
16 had a developer ask to change the order in which things
17 have normally flowed during the Planning Commission,
18 and a motion was made by one of the -- Mr. Grant, one
19 of the at-large members, to allow the developer to go
20 last.  So that motion carried.  So the developer --
21 instead of the developer presenting his project, the
22 developer waiting till the end, so the Planning
23 Commission heard the concerns from the citizens that
24 had shown up to speak on the matter.  So that is not
25 very typical in how things go about.
26 So the strange thing about what happened was, is
27 after the citizens of District 6 got up and shared
28 their concerns, the developer got up and basically
29 attacked the people that were giving their concerns
30 instead of submitting the project.  And it was just --
31 it was very unorthodox and unusual.  And in my opinion,
32 what we ended up having was a developer running the
33 conversation instead of the county staff or the
34 Planning Commission.  And that concerns me very much.
35 We’ve had, in the past, I don’t know, several
36 years, we’ve had some good developments get approved
37 and there was one that was approved in District 6 on
38 the 12th that was a unanimous vote.  It was a thirty-
39 house subdivision with half-acre lots.  It was approved
40 unanimously.  But we’ve also had some others.  
41 And my point to this is, we have a will of the
42 people.  And we, as council people, we all know this,
43 we represent our citizens in our respective districts
44 and sometimes other districts.  We work with all the
45 people of Anderson County.  And we’re the front face of
46 Anderson County to a lot of people.  And the Planning
47 Commission doesn’t necessarily always -- isn’t always
48 out front.  We’re the ones that are elected to
49 represent.  We’re the ones that appoint those planning
50 commissioners.  And so in essence we have a



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - October 19, 2021
6

1 responsibility.  We have a responsibility to make sure
2 that the people in our district are represented to the
3 Planning Commission.  I work very closely with my
4 commissioner.  I don’t say we always agree upon things. 
5 And we’ve gone head-to-head on some issues.  But I
6 respect her and we communicate a lot.
7 I also, you know, there’s other planning
8 commissioners that I know and we speak on occasion. 
9 But, you know, a lot of times I never hear -- and I try
10 to do my best to talk to each one of you about what’s
11 going on in the Planning Commission, and I hope that
12 you pay attention to the agendas when they come out for
13 the Planning Commission, because they’re very
14 important.  And I think that’s one of our greatest
15 duties as council people, that’s one of our greatest
16 appointments to appoint a great commissioner; one that
17 will listen to the people of Anderson County and take
18 things to heart.
19 While that being said, we did, during COVID, we as
20 a council, I believe it was unanimous, we did approve
21 an ordinance to add two at-large planning
22 commissioners.  And in doing so, we were having trouble
23 with quorums being met.  We had one commissioner at a
24 time that would not even come to a meeting and we had
25 another one -- we had one that was working in the
26 healthcare field and we all know the tax and the
27 strains that that put on them.  So there was some
28 concern about making sure we had quorums.  And we have
29 to make sure that we hear developments in a timely
30 manner.  That’s with respect to the developers to make
31 sure that they get their projects heard.
32 But that being said, I do believe that what we --
33 the unseen consequence of that is we do have some
34 unequal representation on the Planning Commission
35 because of these two at-large members.  And whether we
36 meant for -- we didn’t mean for that to happen.  I
37 don’t think any of us up here did.  But I would like
38 for council to consider whether -- I don’t know, Mr.
39 Harmon, what the word is, to remove, repeal, or
40 whatever, to reverse that ordinance to go back to
41 having one planning commissioner for each council
42 district.  
43 With that being said, that puts the ownership on us
44 to make sure that our commissioner, number one, is in
45 attendance and has a pretty good attendance record. 
46 And number two, is well informed on what’s going on and
47 what the will of the people are.  So that is one
48 request that I respectfully ask of all you, that we
49 consider the reversing or removal of that ordinance to
50 go back to seven planning commissioners just to make



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - October 19, 2021
7

1 sure that we have equal representation.  
2 You know, there’s been a lot of comments floating
3 around out there.  There was a news article written
4 about the Planning Commission meeting, and whether it
5 was favorable or not, I’m not even going to comment on
6 that.  But you know, we’ve got to have some
7 understanding.  And I’m glad that staff is doing some
8 training with our commissioners.  I think y’all had the
9 first training session today.  Is that right, Ms.
10 Hunter?  And I know it was well attended and there were
11 a lot of good questions.  But when I read in the
12 newspaper that -- or a news article that a planning
13 commissioner makes a statement, hey, well, they checked
14 all the boxes that the county has, so we’ve got to
15 approve things.  That’s not the right answer.  That’s
16 not what the Planning Commission is for.  And if that’s
17 what -- if that was the case, then all we would need
18 are some mannequins up here with their hand raised. 
19 And that’s not what commissioners are for.  They’re
20 there to hear the people, to examine all the data, and
21 to make good educated decisions.
22 And so I have great concern with what’s going on
23 with our Planning Commission.  As Mr. Powell brought
24 up, we have right now over a thousand houses that are
25 approved but unbuilt in District 6.  We have yet to
26 realize the impact on our infrastructure of that.  So I
27 have great concerns.  And I just plead with you that we
28 consider these measures and just please keep in contact
29 with your commissioner.  
30 And if you have any questions about what’s going on
31 in District 6, please feel free to give me a call. 
32 Thank you, Mr. Chair.
33 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr. Davis. 
34 Anyone else?
35 CINDY WILSON:  Mr. Chairman, may I?
36 TOMMY DUNN:  Ms. Wilson.
37 CINDY WILSON:  So the two new members
38 had not had the state required training before they
39 were seated, or at least recently until today?
40 TOMMY DUNN:  No, ma’am.  You’ve got
41 so long to get your training in, but there was a
42 training class offered not just for them.  It’s
43 continual training.  You have to have continual
44 training on -- to be not only on the Planning
45 Commission, also Zoning Appeals Board has to be
46 continual training.  And that was offered today.  It
47 just happened to fall on today and there’s been others
48 in the past and there will be some more in the future.
49 JIMMY DAVIS:  There was some training
50 prior to today.



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - October 19, 2021
8

1 CINDY WILSON:  Okay.  Thank you.
2 TOMMY DUNN:  Anyone else?  Mr.
3 Sanders.
4 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir.  I believe --
5 I think right now District 4 is probably the fastest
6 growing area.  Is that correct, Ms. Hunter?  Okay.  I
7 knew we had some other stuff coming in.  
8 I hear the concerns being stated.  I know I have --
9 catching up or on the heels of the Powdersville
10 District 6 area now and should surpass it this year. 
11 There’s a fine balance between you’ve got to hear the
12 people, but you also have to respect property owner
13 rights, as well.  I don’t have the problems that
14 District 6 has because I have zoning.  And I think if
15 District 6 would zone, a lot of these problems would be
16 solved immediately.  It would come before council
17 instead of being put in the hands of the Planning
18 Commission.  That’s just my opinion.
19 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  Anyone else?
20 CINDY WILSON:  May I?
21 TOMMY DUNN:  Ms. Wilson.
22 CINDY WILSON:  There is something on
23 the horizon for District 1.  They have called for a
24 impact fee study.  I don’t know where that is, but I
25 understood it was about a three-months duration and
26 then would be brought forward.  I’ve not heard back
27 from the district.  I share part of District 1 with Mr.
28 Davis and Mr. Sanders.  Have y’all heard any updates?
29 BRETT SANDERS:  No, ma’am. 
30 CINDY WILSON:  Well, we are in the
31 midst of the most horrid growth I’ve ever seen in my
32 life.  It’s important that we do get a handle on it. 
33 There are some issues that we can’t manage on our own. 
34 We do require the general assembly to allow the
35 counties or municipalities to upgrade their building
36 standards.  For example, slabs on grade are not doing
37 too well and we’re getting overwhelmed with them.  But
38 that’s based on the International Building Code minimum
39 standards.  And we are not allowed to mess with that,
40 so to speak.  We have only the state licensing that
41 governs that.  
42 And then we have the issues in my area of
43 annexation in order to totally circumvent established
44 zoning to dump high density in the midst of low density
45 zoned for twenty years or more.  So we’ve got a lot of
46 different pressures hitting us.  And I think we do need
47 to engage our General Assembly on some of this.  The
48 towns that annex out, it’s not that we’ve looking to
49 stop them, but they should at least honor and respect
50 the neighborhoods and the zoning.  But they’re not



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - October 19, 2021
9

1 willing to in the case of the city of Anderson.  Thank
2 you.
3 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  Anyone else?
4 RAY GRAHAM:  Mr. Chairman. 
5 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Graham.
6 RAY GRAHAM:  I guess in this
7 discussion, I mean, what’s being suggested is possibly
8 pulling the two that was recently appointed back off of
9 the commission.  And to me I think I would have a
10 problem with that.  You know, I definitely want it to
11 be fair across the board as far as all the districts. 
12 But we struggle to get members of the community to be a
13 part of our different committees, across the board for
14 all of our committees.  I think we all do that.  But to
15 have people involved in that, you know, and then
16 basically after they put effort and energy into the
17 process now we’re wanting to go backwards on it.  I’d
18 have a little bit of heartburn on that.  I think
19 probably we need to look at, you know, what can we do
20 to improve the system if the system is not working.  
21 Mr. Davis, I know you are struggling up there with
22 growth.  I wish I had that same issue in my district. 
23 But I mean I realize we’ve got problems in our county. 
24 And I think we need to be open-eared to our citizens
25 regardless what district you guys are from.  I mean, I
26 definitely hear your plea.  And I think there’s other
27 ways that we can attend to your call that you’re making
28 here.  But I just don’t know about going back to, you
29 know, two members.  I’m mighty afraid we’ll go back to
30 the same circumstances we were in where we was
31 struggling trying to get enough members to fill them
32 seats when there was meetings called.  And not only
33 wasting your tax dollars, because our county employees
34 are setting those meetings up and trying to plan these
35 things accordingly.  And then when you didn’t have
36 enough to even have a quorum to have a meeting, I think
37 that’s kind of putting them up against the wall, as
38 well.  So I just don’t know if that’s the answer.
39 I’m not saying we don’t need to do something, but I
40 think we truly need to look at what we’re getting ready
41 to do here to make sure it’s in the right direction.
42 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
43 TOMMY DUNN:  Anyone else?
44 JIMMY DAVIS:  Mr. Chair.
45 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Davis.
46 JIMMY DAVIS:  And I completely take
47 your point to heart, Mr. Graham.  But what I’ll say is
48 before COVID we didn’t -- as long as I -- the first
49 three years I was on council, we always had a quorum. 
50 So it wasn’t that we had a problem until COVID really



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - October 19, 2021
10

1 started hitting and that was really when we started
2 having -- had a quorum problem.  
3 I mean, I can’t see where having seven
4 commissioners and equal representation is a bad thing. 
5 What I think the unseen consequence was is we ended up
6 with commissioners making decisions that impact
7 citizens’ lives that don’t take the time to do any of
8 the research or take the care to listen to citizens
9 when they come in numbers and express their concerns. 
10 And that’s what I have, especially with Wes Grant.  I
11 have a problem, a big problem.  And he has repeatedly
12 just ignored what’s going on.  
13 So that being said, I just think we need to go back
14 to what we originally had and what we had for a long
15 time that seemed to work with the Planning Commission
16 with each council person having one representative.
17 Thank you, Mr. Chair.
18 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  Anyone else?
19 JOHN WRIGHT:  Mr. Chairman.
20 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Wright.
21 JOHN WRIGHT:  I think -- and I’m new
22 to thing whole thing, obviously, but I’ve been around
23 the real estate world for not as long as Ms. Wilson
24 has, but for about ten years.  And one thing I’ve
25 found, I guess, is that it’s a balancing act.  You
26 know, I think that property rights -- you know, I don’t
27 want anybody telling me what I can do with my property. 
28 But I don’t want to be able to tell them what they can
29 do with theirs.  And so I think it’s a balancing act
30 just to try to figure out, you know, the best thing for
31 everybody.  I think a lot of the issues that I’m
32 hearing, you know, because I try to talk to both sides,
33 like we all do, you know, don’t just tell me no on a
34 project.  You know, give me a reason.  Tell me what’s
35 wrong with it.  What can I do differently that might
36 help the community and the people that have -- you
37 know, that are opposed to it.  Ms. Wilson brought up
38 zoning.  Mr. Sanders brought up zoning.  I mean, is
39 that something that’s been looked at before in the
40 Powdersville area, is some type of zoning.  Like I
41 said, I’m kind of new to this.  I’m just kind of
42 curious.  Seems like that might fix a lot of the
43 problems that we’re having up that way, is zoning.  I
44 mean, is there a reason that hasn’t been implemented in
45 the past?  
46 JIMMY DAVIS:  I appreciate your
47 question, Mr. Wright.  And it has been.  Before I took
48 office, they worked on Powdersville and Concrete.  It
49 was defeated.  It’s been defeated before.  We actually
50 have some efforts right now going on in other



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - October 19, 2021
11

1 precincts.  We have one small precinct that’s zoned. 
2 And they zoned that for various reasons.  And not in
3 all cases.  And zoning is not the fix-all to stop
4 developing.  In fact, in a lot of cases, zoning
5 actually encourages development.
6 I’m not against all development.  I’m not a fool. 
7 I know that it’s coming.  We just have to be careful. 
8 We sit up here and we make excuses on why some of our
9 infrastructure is the way it is, and it happened way
10 before any of us were on council.  But we don’t have
11 the ways and the means to get roads paved and school
12 districts are suffering with bonds.  I mean they’re
13 putting the bonds on the back of the taxpayers to build
14 what they can.  But it’s reactionary.  It’s not
15 proactive.  And we have some challenges there.
16 And I’m saying we’ve got to look at these
17 challenges.  And we’re all on the same boat and we need
18 to be rowing the same way.  And so zoning is an answer
19 for some situations.  It’s not for all.  And really
20 it’s up to the people.  The power is the people.  And
21 if we’re going to say zoning -- if we’re going to put
22 the power in the people’s hands then they truly have
23 the power.  I’m saying we need to listen to them, is
24 all I’m saying.  Thank you.
25 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  Mr. Harmon,
26 what’s the time?  
27 LEON HARMON:  We’re over time now.
28 TOMMY DUNN:  I thought it was.  I’d
29 ask to make a motion to extend it five minutes.
30 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
31 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
32 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Sanders.  All
33 in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
34 sign.  Anyone have anything else on this subject?
35 RAY GRAHAM:  Mr. Chairman.
36 TOMMY DUNN:  Yes, sir.
37 RAY GRAHAM:  I know you want to move
38 on, but ---
39 TOMMY DUNN:  No, sir, I want to make
40 sure this gets vented out.
41 RAY GRAHAM:  Just one thing to kind
42 of clarify my comments earlier.  I would not be opposed
43 to going with two per district, but again, I do have a
44 concern with pulling two of them off that we’ve already
45 appointed.  To me that was something we done in good
46 faith with council.  We’ve already got those members
47 involved.  And I just think it would be negative on us.
48 I don’t have an issue with making it even across
49 the board.  So I just wanted to share that.
50 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  I just want



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - October 19, 2021
12

1 to point out a couple of things.  And I feel and
2 understand what’s going on.  I think this council has
3 tried to listen and we’ve tried to make a better
4 product.  We have got several things we’ve done.  I’ve
5 got a couple of other things in mind.  
6 But I want to point out a couple of things.  Number
7 one, if we say, as Mr. Davis pointed out a while ago
8 about commissioners saying, well if it checks all the
9 boxes I’ve got to vote for it.  Well, if that’s the
10 case, we wouldn’t need a Planning Commission.  You’re
11 exactly right.  That’s not.  But the same case, I don’t
12 care if a thousand people come down here.  They’re
13 supposed to listen.  I’ve sat in that chair before. 
14 But you’ve got to make what you think is the best
15 decision.  You’ve got to protect somebody’s property
16 rights and the citizens.  Like people said before, it’s
17 a fine balancing act.  It ain’t just that.
18 But there’s a couple of tools out there.  I keep
19 hearing about the schools, and I feel very -- and I
20 think Mr. Davis went up there and made a talk with
21 this.  The schools can do impact fees and take care of
22 their problem.  Help out a whole lot.  I’ve had people
23 call me from that area about this and that.  You’ve got
24 to want to do some things yourself; not just come to
25 council meetings.  Because council, we’re set by state
26 law what we can do and what we can’t do.  And state law
27 says it’s a very fine line between county council
28 getting involved in the Planning Commission’s business.
29 Yeah, we appoint them.  But then it comes -- they
30 represent the thing.  State laws give them statutes to
31 set that.  That’s the reason when a subdivision comes
32 up I don’t like it.  Me and Mr. Sanders has talked
33 about it.  Me and Mr. Davis has talked about it.  You
34 know, the buck ought to stop at our desk.  We’ve the
35 ones that’s elected officials, but we’ll never see a
36 subdivision come before us unless it’s a zoning issue. 
37 That’s the only way we’ll see it.  It’s the Planning
38 Commission’s.  State Legislature gives them the
39 authority to do that, and staff.  
40 But there are some toolboxes you can do and one of
41 them is zoning.  Is zoning going to fix everything? 
42 No.  But it would greatly help that area up there. 
43 Greatly help it.  Because zoning you can go in and put
44 where it’s going to be acre lots or three-quarter acre
45 lots or what not.  It would help out tremendously. 
46 Because what we’ve been trying to do and get around is
47 through zoning or put a moratorium on which council
48 can’t do unless you do it countywide.  And I don’t
49 think Mr. Graham is wanting them to stop growth in his
50 district to vote.  Mr. Wright won’t.  So that’s not --



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - October 19, 2021
13

1 we can’t do that.  I wish we could say, okay, we can
2 stop this -- we can do this area here, slow it down,
3 look at something, but we can’t.  It’s got to be --
4 state law, it’s got to be countywide.  So that’s out of
5 the thing.  So you’re going to have to take some
6 ownership and do some things yourself.  
7 Like I say, I’m looking at some other things to try
8 to help out.  But you’re going to have to do some of
9 this stuff -- and I know people is entirely against --
10 in that area against zoning.  I don’t like zoning. 
11 I’ve got zoning where I live.  Didn’t vote for it, but
12 I got it.  But I think you ought -- people do have
13 rights.  But also you’ve got to live somewhere.  I know
14 the schools and traffic and all this is a fine thing
15 and we’re in a lot of growing pains.  But you’ve got to
16 get up here and help yourself on some of this stuff. 
17 And the council will help you, but we can only do so
18 much.  
19 I appreciate it.  We’re moving on.
20 Moving on to item number -- there’s no third
21 readings.  
22 We’re going to be moving on now to item number
23 7(a).  This is ordinance second reading, 7(a), 2021-
24 057, an Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the
25 Anderson County Zoning Ordinance, as adopted July
26 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County Official
27 Zoning Map to rezone +/- 20.5 acres from C-2 (Highway
28 Commercial District) to I-2 (Industrial Park District)
29 on a parcel of land identified as Highway 81 North &
30 Evergreen Rd in the North Pointe Precinct shown in Deed
31 Book 4293 page 163.  The parcel is further identified
32 as TMS #144-00-04-008.  It’s in District 4.  
33 Ms. Hunter, do you have anything you want to add
34 before we go into public hearing?  
35 We’re going into a public hearing.  Anyone wishing
36 to speak this matter, address the chair.  Please step
37 forward.  Public hearing.  Anyone at all?  
38 RIVERS STILWELL:  Mr. Chairman, my name is
39 Rivers Stilwell.  I represent the developer.  I think I
40 actually signed for the landowner as the applicant. 
41 This is just to rezone a split zone parcel that’s half
42 I-2 and half C-2 to get it all back to I-2 so it can
43 allow an important economic development project to
44 proceed.  Thank you.
45 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  Anyone else? 
46 Seeing and hearing none, the public hearing will be
47 closed.  Do we have a motion to move this forward?
48 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
49 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
50 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Mr. Sanders;



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - October 19, 2021
14

1 second Mr. Wright.  Any discussion?
2 CINDY WILSON:  Yes, sir.
3 TOMMY DUNN:  Ms. Wilson.
4 CINDY WILSON:  Just very quickly.  This
5 is the property across the road from District 7 and
6 that certainly is a very appropriate rezoning request. 
7 But because it’s a very nice area, I’m going to request
8 that they be mindful of landscaping and buffers and so
9 forth to fit in nicely.  Of course, the logistics are
10 perfect, right near the interstate, and all the
11 infrastructure.  And they’re very welcome in our
12 community.  Thank you.
13 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  Anyone else? 
14 All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed
15 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
16 Moving on to item number 7(b), 2021-058, an
17 ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson
18 County Zoning Ordinance, as adopted July 20, 1999, by
19 amending the Anderson County Official Zoning Map to
20 rezone +/- 16.22 acres from C-2 (Highway Commercial
21 District) & R-15 (Single Family Residential) to M-R
22 (Multifamily Residential) on a parcel of land
23 identified as Royal American Rd and Driftwood Way, in
24 the Denver-Sandy Springs Precinct shown in Deed Book
25 2462 page 186.  The parcel is further identified as TMS
26 #93-02-02-060, TMS #93-02-02-062, and TMS #93-02-02-
27 063.  This will be in District 5.  Anyone wishing to
28 speak to this matter, please step forward and state
29 your name and district for the record, please.  Anyone
30 at all?  Seeing and hearing none, all in favor of the
31 motion show of hands -- oh, I’m sorry.  Do we have a
32 motion?  I’m sorry.  
33 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
34 TOMMY DUNN:  We’ve got to have a
35 motion.  Motion Ms. Wilson.  Have a second?
36 JOHN WRIGHT:  Second.
37 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Wright.  Now
38 any discussion?  All in favor of the motion show of
39 hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
40 unanimously.
41 Moving on to item number 7(c), 2021-060, an
42 Ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of
43 a joint county industrial and business park (2010 park)
44 of Anderson and Greenville counties so as to enlarge
45 the park; and other matters related thereto.
46 We’ll be going into a public hearing.  Before we
47 do, I’m going to ask Mr. Nelson if he’ll say a few
48 words before we go into the public hearing.
49 BURRISS NELSON:  (Not speaking into mic.)
50 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr. Nelson. 



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - October 19, 2021
15

1 We have a public hearing of this matter.  Anyone
2 wishing to speak to this matter, please step forward
3 and state your name and district for the record and
4 address the chair.  Anyone at all, please?  Seeing and
5 hearing none, the public hearing will be closed.  Do we
6 have a motion to move this forward?
7 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
8 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Ms. Wilson.  Do
9 we have a second?
10 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
11 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Sanders.  Any
12 discussion?
13 CINDY WILSON:  May I real quickly?
14 TOMMY DUNN:  Ms. Wilson.
15 CINDY WILSON:  It goes without saying
16 that Anderson County gets one percent of their fee in
17 lieu of tax revenue for the multi-county park.  Thank
18 you.
19 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  Anyone else? 
20 All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed
21 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
22 We’re going to move on now to item number 8(a). 
23 These will be first readings.  We’re going to 8(a), 
24 2021-062, an Ordinance to provide approval for Anderson
25 county to grant a perpetual and non-exclusive easement
26 unto Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC. for the real property
27 being 0.80 acres, common area, Halter Drive, Piedmont,
28 SC 29673 bearing Anderson County tax map #237-08-03-001
29 to facilitate the relocation of the electric and
30 communication lines; and other matters related thereto. 
31 Mr. Burriss Nelson.
32 BURRISS NELSON:  (Not speaking into mic.)
33 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  Do we have a
34 motion to move this forward?
35 JIMMY DAVIS:  So moved.
36 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Mr. Davis, Jimmy
37 Davis.  Do we have a second?
38 RAY GRAHAM:  Second.
39 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
40 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Graham.  Now
41 discussion.  Anybody have any questions or comments for
42 Mr. Nelson or anything else?  Seeing and hearing none,
43 all in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed
44 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
45 Moving on to item number 8(b), 2021-063, an
46 Ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of
47 a joint county industrial and business park (2010 park)
48 of Anderson and Greenville counties so as to enlarge
49 the park; and other matters related thereto (Project
50 Storybook).  Mr. Nelson.



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - October 19, 2021
16

1 BURRISS NELSON:  (Not speaking into mic.) 
2 Sorry.  And we have that same privilege with receiving
3 those same benefits for projects in our county.  This
4 is a reciprocal agreement.  And it allows them to
5 receive benefits from the state.  And this does meet
6 state statute in their request.  And as Ms. Wilson
7 says, we get a portion of that tax flow that comes off
8 of that project.
9 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  Anymore

10 discussion?  All in favor of the motion show of hands. 
11 All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
12 unanimously.  
13 Moving on to item number 8(c), 2021-064, an
14 Ordinance authorizing an amendment to an existing fee
15 in lieu of tax agreement between Anderson County, South
16 Carolina and Milliken & Company to extend the
17 investment period for an additional five years, in
18 return and expectation for additional investment in the
19 county, and to provide for the provision of certain
20 special source revenue credits/infrastructure
21 improvement credits; and other matters related thereto.
22 Do we have a motion to move this forward?
23 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
24 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Ms. Wilson.  Have
25 a second?
26 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
27 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Sanders.  Now
28 discussion.  Mr. Nelson.
29 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman,
30 members of council.  This is a portion of or an
31 amendment to Project X3 that we did in 2016 where
32 Milliken was continuing to grow at all three of their
33 plants, the Cushman Plant, the Gerrish Milliken Plant,
34 as well as the Pendleton Finishing Plant.  And their
35 plan is to continue to invest.  They, at that time,
36 promised 2.5 million for each one of those facilities. 
37 They have certainly reached that number.  Actually
38 exceeded that.  And they continue to grow.  And they’re
39 promising, as always, to promise but they wanted to
40 over-deliver.  So they’re still making the request of
41 the 2.5 million number for all three of those
42 facilities.  And they’re maintaining their current
43 employee numbers with that, not claiming any new jobs
44 at this time.  This, of course, still meets state
45 statute and comes to council with our recommendation
46 from staff.  But also, we appreciate you giving
47 consideration to this.
48 TOMMY DUNN:  Anyone have any
49 questions, comments from Mr. Nelson or anything else? 
50 Anymore discussion?



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - October 19, 2021
17

1 CINDY WILSON:  May I make a quick
2 comments?
3 TOMMY DUNN:  Ms. Wilson.
4 CINDY WILSON:  My daddy worked at the
5 Cushman Mill for thirty years.  Milliken & Company
6 provided so many jobs for people transitioning from the
7 country and farming to being able to keep food on the
8 table.  And Roger Milliken was one of the most
9 brilliant people ever.  My father went with him to some
10 trade shows.  And he had patents himself.  Developed a
11 lot of his own equipment.  We’re just so blessed in
12 Anderson County to still have some of our textile
13 heritage and certain the caliber of textiles that we
14 have in our county.  
15 TOMMY DUNN:  Yes, ma’am.
16 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you.
17 CINDY WILSON:  Just wanted to put that
18 plug in.
19 TOMMY DUNN:  Anyone else?  All in
20 favor of the motion show of hands.
21 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, I don’t
22 think we have a motion on the floor yet.
23 TOMMY DUNN:  Yeah.
24 LEON HARMON:  Oh, you do?
25 TOMMY DUNN:  Yeah.  Didn’t we? 
26 Because I’ve been very careful -- Mr. Sanders seconded
27 it.  Yeah.
28 BRETT SANDERS:  We’ll do it again if ---
29 TOMMY DUNN:  I’m already bad enough,
30 Leon, don’t get me -- Mr. Harmon -- don’t get me no
31 more rattled.  I’ve been paying attention tonight.  All
32 in favor of the motion show of hands.  Opposed like
33 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
34 Moving on to number 8(d), 2021-066, an Ordinance to
35 amend an agreement for the development of a joint
36 county industrial and business park (2010 park) of
37 Anderson and Greenville counties so as to enlarge the
38 park; and other matters related thereto.  This is
39 Milliken.  Do we have a motion to move this forward?
40 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
41 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Sanders makes the
42 motion.
43 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
44 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Ms. Wilson.  Now
45 discussion.  Mr. Nelson.
46 BURRISS NELSON:  Mr. Chairman, this,
47 again, is adding, from our side, a project to the
48 Greenville/Anderson Multi-County Industrial Park.  And
49 this is all three of those plants that will be included
50 for the benefits that they can get from the state for



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - October 19, 2021
18

1 jobs creation and tax credits.  And this comes -- it
2 does meet statute and it comes -- certainly we thank
3 you and appreciate you giving consideration to this
4 project.
5 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr. Nelson. 
6 Anymore discussion?  Seeing and hearing none, all in
7 favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
8 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
9 We’re moving on next to item 8(e), first reading,
10 2021-067, an Ordinance authorizing (1) the execution
11 and delivery of a fee in lieu of tax and incentive
12 agreement by and between Anderson county, South
13 Carolina (the “County”) and a company identified for
14 the time being as Project Stingray, acting for itself,
15 one or more affiliates, and/or other project sponsors
16 (the “company”), pursuant to which the county shall
17 covenant to accept certain negotiated fees in lieu of
18 ad valorem taxes with respect to the expansion of
19 certain facilities in the County (collectively, the
20 “expansion project”); (2) the benefits of a
21 multi-county industrial or business park to be made
22 available to the company and the expansion project; (3)
23 certain special source revenue credits in connection
24 with the expansion project; and (4) other matters
25 relating thereto.  This is in title only.  Do we have a
26 motion to move this forward?
27 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
28 RAY GRAHAM:  Second.
29 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Ms. Wilson;
30 second Mr. Graham.  Now discussion.  Mr. Nelson.
31 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman,
32 members of council.  This is a project that came to
33 Anderson County thirty years ago and has been acquired
34 twice by different companies over a period of time. 
35 And they’re being spun back off because of the high
36 skill and the need for their particular product,
37 they’re being spun back to their original company and
38 maintaining the current jobs, adding eight million
39 dollars in equipment at that facility and adding to our
40 fee agreement.  Of course, this all meets statute. 
41 They’re going to maintain their job numbers.  And
42 average pay is about twenty-two dollars an hour in that
43 facility.  The -- I thought I had the total annual
44 payroll.  But anyway, the first year community impact
45 is one million -- approximately one million dollars. 
46 And the thirty year impact is fifteen million.  And
47 this comes to council.  And all this meets statute. 
48 And it’s complicated with all those company names that
49 are having to be corrected and some other things.  And
50 we’ll have a couple more ordinances on council floor,



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - October 19, 2021
19

1 as well, to get this back to where it was originally. 
2 But we certainly appreciate you giving consideration to
3 all that.
4 TOMMY DUNN:  Anymore discussion? 
5 Comments?  All in favor of the motion show of hands. 
6 All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
7 unanimously.
8 We’re going to move on to item number 8(f),
9 2021-068, an Ordinance authorizing (1) the conversion
10 and re-documentation of that certain lease agreement
11 between Anderson county, South Carolina (the “County”)
12 and a company identified for the time being as Project
13 Stingray, acting for itself, one or more affiliates,
14 and/or other project sponsors, including all incentive
15 arrangements set forth therein, pertaining to certain
16 existing facilities located within the County; (2) the
17 execution and delivery of one or more agreements,
18 instruments, and other documents in connection with
19 such conversion and redocumentation; and (3) other
20 matters relating thereto.  Title only.  Do we have a
21 motion to move this forward?
22 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
23 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Ms. Wilson.  Do
24 we have a second?
25 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
26 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Glenn Davis. 
27 Any discussion?  Mr. Nelson.
28 BURRISS NELSON:  Mr. Chairman, members of
29 council, this is literally all of the verbiage that
30 really changes the name from where it was back to the
31 original.  That’s the simple explanation for that.  But
32 it’s the same project, Project Stingray.  And all that
33 meets state statute.  And comes to council as a
34 recommendation from our staff.  And we certainly
35 appreciate you giving consideration to it.  Thank you.
36 TOMMY DUNN:  Do we have a motion to
37 move this -- anymore discussion?  Hearing and seeing
38 none, all in favor of the motion show of hands. 
39 Opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
40 unanimously.
41 Moving on to item number 9, Resolution 9(a), 
42 R2021-048, a Resolution authorizing a five year
43 extension of the investment period under that certain
44 fee in lieu of tax agreement between Anderson County,
45 South Carolina and Milliken & Company; and other
46 matters related thereto.  Do we have a motion to move
47 this forward?
48 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
49 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Ms. Wilson.  Do
50 we have a second?



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - October 19, 2021
20

1 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
2 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Glenn Davis. 
3 Now discussion.  Do you have anything else to add to
4 this, Mr. Nelson?  This is the same project we’ve been
5 talking about.
6 BURRISS NELSON:  This is the same
7 project.  Rusty, are we going to do ordinance ...
8 RUSTY BURNS:  (Not speaking into mic.)
9 TOMMY DUNN:  Not on my paper.  I

10 don’t have a (g).  For once it ain’t my fault.
11 CINDY WILSON:  And I don’t see a copy
12 of the agreement.  Do we have that yet?
13 BURRISS NELSON:  This is the project to
14 develop the Equinox Mill site.  Because we’re trying to
15 get this done so they can secure their bonds before
16 January 1st, we’re doing the first reading in title
17 only.  
18 What this is, we purchased that property for fifty
19 thousand dollars in order to redevelop that property. 
20 This company is going to pay eighty thousand dollars,
21 off the top of my head, to take control of that
22 property.  It will require three readings from council
23 for that to happen.  But if council would bear with us
24 so we can make this deadline so they can secure the
25 bonds before the January 1 deadline.
26 TOMMY DUNN:  This is -- this was
27 added -- this was changed -- the agenda was amended. 
28 I’ve got the old agenda.
29 RUSTY BURNS:  Yes, sir.
30 TOMMY DUNN:  This was amended.  It
31 was done legally.  It was all done before what you call
32 it, the twenty-four hour period and all, on this.  And
33 this is the project we talked about ---
34 RUSTY BURNS:  Last meeting; yes, sir.
35 TOMMY DUNN:  --- last meeting night. 
36 This is Equinox Mill.  It’s in title only.  We’ve got
37 two more votes.  We’ll get documentation and getting
38 all that.  And as Mr. Burns said, they wanted to do
39 this because they want to be able to get it done by the
40 end of the year, to get everything that needs to be
41 done tonight.  Do we have a motion to move this
42 forward?
43 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
44 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Ms. Wilson.  Do
45 we have a second?
46 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
47 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Sanders.  Any
48 discussion?  I just want to say I think this is going
49 to be great for Anderson and great for that community. 
50 But great for Anderson as a whole to make this happen. 



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - October 19, 2021
21

1 Really looking forward to this.  The whole area over
2 there is going to be helped out; me and Mr. Davis’s
3 area both.  Anybody else got anything?  All in favor of
4 the motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show
5 the motion carries unanimously.
6 Now, may I move on to item (b) or (a)?  We done
7 (a).  We didn’t get to vote on (a), did we?  Resolution
8 authorizing a five year extension.  That’s that same
9 thing.  That’s what Mr. Nelson -- I’d say this is the
10 same thing.  That’s what Mr. Nelson asked if we were
11 going to do (g), and I didn’t have no (g).  So is there
12 anything else to add to the Resolution R2021-048 about
13 the Milliken Plant?
14 BURRISS NELSON:  No, sir.  No additional
15 information required.
16 TOMMY DUNN:  Okay.  And I think we
17 had a motion.  But just for the record, let’s do it
18 again.  Somebody make a motion for this?  
19 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
20 TOMMY DUNN:  Ms. Wilson makes a
21 motion.  Second by Mr. ---
22 JIMMY DAVIS:  Mr. Davis seconded the
23 motion.
24 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Glenn Davis seconds
25 the motion.  Now, any discussion?  All in favor of the
26 motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the
27 motion carries unanimously.
28 Now we’re going to move on to 8 -- I mean 9(b). 
29 I’m sorry.  This will be R2021-049, a Resolution
30 authorizing pursuant to title 12, chapter 44 of the
31 code of laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, the
32 execution and delivery of an amendment to that certain
33 amended & restated fee-in-lieu of ad valorem taxes and
34 economic development agreement, by and between Anderson
35 County, South Carolina, One World Technologies, Inc.,
36 as sponsor, and certain sponsor affiliates; and other
37 related matters thereto.  Do we have a motion to move
38 this forward?
39 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
40 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
41 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Mr. Sanders;
42 second Ms. Wilson.  Open the floor up for discussion. 
43 We’ll start with Mr. Nelson.
44 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman,
45 members of council.  If you’ll remember, just last
46 council meeting we finished third reading, adding a
47 number of properties that TTI has acquired over the
48 last eighteen months.  They were in the middle of
49 closing on this particular tract at that time.  And so
50 they need to add that to their fee in lieu of taxes. 



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - October 19, 2021
22

1 There’s a map in my packet directly behind this
2 resolution explanation.  They are continuing to grow. 
3 This adds another hundred and forty acres, I believe,
4 is the total amount, to that.  And of course, that all
5 is within South Carolina statute for fee in lieu of
6 taxes to add properties.  And this comes certainly --
7 we certainly appreciate you giving consideration for
8 this project.
9 TOMMY DUNN:  Anymore discussion,

10 questions, comments?  All in favor of the motion show
11 of hands.  Opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
12 unanimously.
13 Moving on to number 9(c), Resolution R2021-050, a
14 Resolution authorizing (1) the execution and delivery
15 of a fee in lieu of tax and incentive agreement by and
16 between Anderson County, South Carolina (the “County”)
17 and a company identified for the time being as Project
18 Stingray, acting for itself, one or more affiliates,
19 and/or other project sponsors (collectively, the
20 “company”), pursuant to which the county shall covenant
21 to accept certain negotiated fees in lieu of ad valorem
22 taxes with respect to the expansion of certain
23 facilities in the County (collectively, the “expansion
24 project”); (2) the benefits of a multi-county
25 industrial or business park to be made available to the
26 company and the expansion project; (3) certain special
27 source revenue credits in connection with the expansion
28 project; and (4) other matters relating thereto.  Do we
29 have a motion to move this forward?
30 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
31 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Ms. Wilson.  Do
32 we have a second.
33 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
34 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Sanders. 
35 Anything to add to this?  We’ve done talked about this. 
36 Anything else to add to this?
37 BURRISS NELSON:  Yes, sir.  This is
38 exactly the same thing.  This just is a summary of the
39 fee agreement that we’re undertaking now.
40 TOMMY DUNN:  Anymore discussion? 
41 Anybody have anything?  All in favor of the motion show
42 of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
43 carries unanimously.
44 Thank you, Mr. Nelson.  Appreciate you and your
45 team for all what y’all do.  Y’all have been busy.
46 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you.
47 TOMMY DUNN:  Keep it up.
48 BURRISS NELSON:  Yes, sir.  Thank you. 
49 Thank you for your support.
50 TOMMY DUNN:  Moving on to item number



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - October 19, 2021
23

1 10, report from the ATAX Committee, Mr. Brill.  Mr.
2 Brill.
3 GLENN BRILL:  Well, you have the
4 recommendations from the ATAX Committee in your packet. 
5 It met last week and just for the benefit of everybody,
6 2022 is going to be the biggest year for tourism in
7 Anderson County’s history.  I mean we have got so much
8 coming down, I’m not sure how we’re going to get
9 through the summer without having some supplemental
10 oxygen with all the big stuff we’ve got.  So it’s going
11 to be a fun year.  Put a lot of heads in beds and a lot
12 of dollars in people’s pockets.
13 TOMMY DUNN:  Great, Mr. Brill.  
14 CINDY WILSON:  Can we add to that that
15 we’re one of the top airbnb destinations in the world.
16 TOMMY DUNN:  That’s great.  Do we
17 have any questions or comments from Mr. Brill?
18 JIMMY DAVIS:  Mr. Chair?
19 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Davis.
20 JIMMY DAVIS:  Do we have an idea of
21 economic impact on what all you’ve got on the table
22 right now; what we’re looking at?
23 GLENN BRILL:     Well, I can tell you the
24 Bass Master Classic in March alone is worth twenty-five
25 million dollars.  We’re hosting two different state
26 championships for Dixie Youth baseball and softball in
27 July.  Each one of those is a million dollars.  The
28 Dixie Youth World Series will be approaching a two
29 million dollar economic impact.  I mean, when you add
30 it all up, we could be approaching fifty million
31 dollars in economic impact.  Not all at Green Pond,
32 too.  It’s going to be all over the county, including
33 in District 3 and in District 6.
34 TOMMY DUNN:  That’s great.  That’s
35 great.  Anyone else have anymore questions or comments
36 for Mr. Brill?
37 CINDY WILSON:  Mr. Chairman, ---
38 TOMMY DUNN:  Ms. Wilson.
39 CINDY WILSON:  --- may we take out the
40 South Carolina Upstate Equine Council in view of my
41 disclosure, I serve on their board and volunteer and
42 contribute, but they’re requesting some funds for a
43 three-day show which will bring more heads in beds.  So
44 I need to disclose and recuse myself from that item and
45 participate in the rest.
46 TOMMY DUNN:  Are we good to vote on
47 this tonight?  Everybody good?  Ray, you -- 
48 RAY GRAHAM:  Motion.
49 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Graham makes the
50 motion to move this forward and pull the equine thing



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - October 19, 2021
24

1 out of it?
2 RAY GRAHAM:  I so move.
3 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Graham makes that
4 motion.  Do we have a second? 
5 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
6 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Davis.  Now
7 discussion.
8 CINDY WILSON:  May I?
9 TOMMY DUNN:  Yeah.  Any discussion on

10 this?  Seeing and hearing none, all in favor of the
11 motion and recommendation from the ATAX Board show of
12 hands.  All opposed.  Show the motion carries
13 unanimously with Ms. Wilson abstaining. 
14 She’ll have to stay outside for the equine thing,
15 too.  Yeah, she’ll have to stay out for this, too.
16 BRETT SANDERS:  She could have actually
17 voted on that.
18 TOMMY DUNN:  No, we had to pull it
19 out.  That’s right.  But anyway she’s good.  She’s
20 good.  We’ve got to make the motion now to put the
21 equine thing back in.
22 BRETT SANDERS:  I make a motion that we
23 put the equine back in on the ATAX.
24 TOMMY DUNN:  With the recommendation
25 from the ATAX board.  
26 RAY GRAHAM:  Second.
27 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Mr. Sanders;
28 second Mr. Graham.  Any discussion?  All in favor of
29 the motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show
30 the motion carries unanimously.  
31 Now bring her back in.
32 Appreciate, Mr. Brill, the job you and your staff
33 is doing.  Let them know they’re doing an outstanding
34 job.  And we really do appreciate what all they do. 
35 Thank y’all.
36 We’re going to be moving on now to approval of a
37 motor grader.  Mr. Carroll is not -- Ms. Davis is going
38 to take his thing.
39 RITA DAVIS:  Yes, sir.  I’m subbing
40 for him tonight.  
41 TOMMY DUNN:  Okay.
42 RITA DAVIS:  We’re asking for
43 council’s approval of a motor grader.  Blanchard
44 Machinery.  It’s on a state contract.  It’s part of Mr.
45 Stone’s replacement plan for Road and Bridges.  It was
46 scheduled for 2015 replacement.  He’s been trying to
47 watch the money.  And now he knows it’s really needed. 
48 The good news, he’s going to have four piece of
49 equipment, he’s going to sell two of them and they’re
50 going to be down to two in their fleet now if you allow



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - October 19, 2021
25

1 this purchase.  It’s over the two hundred and fifty
2 thousand limit.  That’s why it’s coming before council
3 for approval.
4 TOMMY DUNN:  Do we have a motion to
5 move this forward?
6 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
7 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Mr. Sanders;
8 second Ms. Wilson.  Now discussion.
9 CINDY WILSON:  May I?
10 TOMMY DUNN:  Ms. Wilson.
11 CINDY WILSON:  We don’t have to pay
12 taxes on this equipment?
13 RITA DAVIS:  We pay the five hundred
14 dollars IMF fees for state ---
15 CINDY WILSON:  Okay.  Thank you.
16 TOMMY DUNN:  Anyone else?  Mr.
17 Sanders.
18 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir, Mr. Chairman. 
19 This, along with some budget transfers, was going to
20 come before the Finance Committee and I requested at a
21 meeting I don’t think everyone could make it, so I
22 asked that we just bring it before council.
23 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  I appreciate
24 the explanation.
25 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir.
26 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  Appreciate
27 it.  Anyone else?  All in favor of the motor grader,
28 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
29 carries unanimously.
30 Now we’re going to move on to transfers.  And I
31 think there are some questions about this from what you
32 call it.  So I’m going to let -- if you want to start
33 out or Ms. Wilson can answer questions or what not and
34 we can get through this thing.
35 RITA DAVIS:  Yes, sir.  I would like
36 to openly apologize to Ms. Wilson for the confusion. 
37 Line 12 was the transfers over the allotted amount per
38 our budget ordinance we’re asking council to vote on. 
39 Those were on pages 87 and 88 of your council agenda. 
40 Moving on to item 16(c), pages 104 to 106, were the
41 items that are either less than ten thousand, one line
42 item, or accumulatively less or equal to twenty
43 thousand for the whole year.  
44 Well, in the rush to get all these done, we forgot
45 the ones that were in item 16(c), there’s two items
46 that were over ten thousand as a single line item. 
47 However, they were less than twenty thousand for the
48 whole year.  So I think that’s where the confusion has
49 arisen and I apologize.
50 CINDY WILSON:  Well, there was no



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - October 19, 2021
26

1 backup for item 12 in my book.  And we don’t have pages
2 numbered or the items numbered like we normally do. 
3 This is a different format, but that’s okay.  
4 RITA DAVIS:  I apologize.
5 CINDY WILSON:  But I have a number of
6 questions.
7 TOMMY DUNN:  Can I intervene just one
8 second, Ms. Wilson?  Is it -- would the world come to
9 an end if we postpone this tonight, table this?
10 RITA DAVIS:  No, sir.  It would still
11 spin on its axis.
12 TOMMY DUNN:  Okay.  If it’s all
13 right, then we’re just going to table this.  I make the
14 motion we table this until we get it through the
15 Finance Committee and get all the answers.  Okay?  That
16 way it’ll clear instead of trying to work it all out
17 here in a meeting.  That way we can sit down and look
18 at it and get the documentation.  Is that all right
19 with you, Chairman?
20 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir.
21 TOMMY DUNN:  Okay.  I make the motion
22 we table this.
23 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
24 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
25 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Davis.  All
26 in favor of the motion show of hands.  Opposed like
27 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.  Thank
28 y’all.
29 Does anyone have any appointments that I’m not
30 aware of?  Anyone at all?  Seeing none and hearing
31 none.
32 Do we have a motion to go into executive session
33 for discussion of employment, an appointment matter and
34 receipt of legal advice covered by the attorney/client
35 privilege regarding the Planning Commission website
36 fiasco and receipt of legal advice covered by
37 attorney/client privilege regarding mediation of the
38 Falcon Developments appeal of two Planning Commission
39 decisions?
40 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
41 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion by Ms. Wilson. 
42 Do we have a second?
43 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
44 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Davis.  All
45 in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
46 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
47 We’ll be back in a minute.  We’ll go back here.
48 EXECUTIVE SESSION
49 CINDY WILSON:  May I make the motion
50 that we come out of executive session, having received



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - October 19, 2021
27

1 information of employment and appointment matter and
2 receipt of legal advice covered by the attorney/client
3 privilege regarding the Planning Commission website,
4 receipt of legal advice covered by attorney/client
5 privilege regarding mediation of Falcons Development,
6 appeal of two Planning Commission decisions.  And we
7 took no action.
8 TOMMY DUNN:  We have a motion to come
9 out of executive session.  Do we have a second?
10 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
11 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Jimmy Davis. 
12 All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed
13 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.  
14 Do we have a motion?
15 RAY GRAHAM:  Mr. Chairman.
16 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Graham.
17 RAY GRAHAM:  I’d like to make a
18 motion to appoint Renee D. Watts as Clerk of Council
19 with a salary as discussed in executive session.
20 TOMMY DUNN:  We have a second?
21 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
22 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
23 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Sanders.  Any
24 discussion?
25 JIMMY DAVIS:  Mr. Chair.
26 TOMMY DUNN:  Yes, sir.
27 JIMMY DAVIS:  I just want to welcome
28 Ms. Watts.  I know you’re going to do a great job.  I
29 thank Ms. Turmon and Kris and anybody else that stepped
30 in and helped along the way in the absence of our
31 former clerk.  And I just thank you and I look forward
32 to working with you.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.
33 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  Anyone else?
34 CINDY WILSON:  Likewise.
35 TOMMY DUNN:  I just want to say ---
36 BRETT SANDERS:  We haven’t voted yet.
37 TOMMY DUNN:  No, we ain’t voted yet.
38 BRETT SANDERS:  We don’t know if she’s
39 going to be here or not.
40 TOMMY DUNN:  Y’all keep acting like
41 y’all are acting, she might not.  She might take off
42 running.  All in favor of the motion show of hands. 
43 All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
44 unanimously.
45 Welcome aboard.  Appreciate working with you.  Look
46 forward to working with you.  If we can help in any way
47 let us know.  Okay?
48 Moving on now, Mr. Davis, Jimmy Davis.
49 JIMMY DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  I
50 would like at this time to make a motion to authorize



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - October 19, 2021
28

1 Anderson County to move forward with the amendment of
2 the pleadings to address a website utilizing the county
3 logo and related to the Planning Commission.
4 TOMMY DUNN:  We have a motion by Mr.
5 Davis.  Do we have a second?
6 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
7 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Ms. Wilson.  Any
8 discussion?  All in favor of the motion show of hands. 
9 All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
10 unanimously.
11 Moving on now to item number 15, requests by
12 council members.  Anyone have any? 
13 Seeing and hearing none, we’ll move on to
14 administrator’s report.
15 RUSTY BURNS:  Nothing at this time,
16 Mr. Chairman.
17 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr.
18 Administrator.
19 Moving on now to citizens comments.  When Mr.
20 Harmon calls your name, please address the chair. 
21 You’ve got three minutes.  Please, for the record,
22 state your name and district for the record.  Mr.
23 Harmon.
24 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, no one is
25 signed up.
26 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr. Harmon.
27 Ma’am, I’ll be glad to talk with you or any of
28 these councilmen after the meeting.  We’ve got a
29 procedure you have to -- you have to sign up before the
30 meeting.  
31 TARA FLYNN (Phonics):  (Inaudible.)
32 TOMMY DUNN:  Has anybody got any
33 objection to giving her three minutes?
34 BRETT SANDERS:  No, sir.
35 TOMMY DUNN:  All right.  Come on up,
36 ma’am.  State your name and district for the record and
37 address the chair.  Yes, ma’am.
38 TARA FLYNN:  I’m kind of all over the place. 
39 I’m homeless.  My issue is with things -- places you
40 might fund.  Well, first of all can I record this?  Can
41 I record me doing this?
42 TOMMY DUNN:  You can.
43 TARA FLYNN:  And second, am I going
44 to be arrested for speaking my voice by anybody here?
45 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Burns, ---
46 TARA FLYNN:  By you or you?
47 TOMMY DUNN:  Address the Chair,
48 ma’am.  If you don’t do nothing to break the law you’re
49 not going to be arrested.  Fix that mic where we can
50 hear her.  You’ve got three minutes.



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - October 19, 2021
29

1 TARA FLYNN:  I’m not breaking the law
2 but it seems like ---
3 TOMMY DUNN:  Go ahead, ma’am.
4 TARA FLYNN:  --- everywhere I go
5 there’s police there or there’s security guards ready
6 to arrest me or escort me out of the courthouse and
7 tell me that I can’t come back.  The guy that’s sitting
8 in the back is one of the guys that did that.  
9 Am I free to speak -- am I free to take up my First
10 Amendment Right here and not be arrested for anything?  
11 TOMMY DUNN:  State your facts what
12 you’re wanting to talk about and go ahead.
13 TARA FLYNN:   So you can’t grant me my
14 First Amendment Rights?
15 TOMMY DUNN:  No, ma’am, I ain’t
16 taking them away from you.  You’ve got them.  Go ahead.
17 TARA FLYNN:  All my rights of the
18 Constitution?
19 TOMMY DUNN:  Ma’am, go ahead.
20 TARA FLYNN:  Do you fund DSS or do
21 you help them budget or anything?
22 TOMMY DUNN:  Not that I know of.
23 TARA FLYNN:  Anderson County
24 Sheriff’s Office?
25 TOMMY DUNN:  Hang on just one minute,
26 ma’am.  Let me start over.  I apologize.  This ain’t a
27 Town Hall meeting.  We don’t ask questions.
28 TARA FLYNN:  No, this ---
29 TOMMY DUNN:  Let me finish.  We don’t
30 ask question -- answer questions during this time right
31 here.  Be glad to do that after what you call it and
32 what you call it.  
33 TARA FLYNN:  I called you but you
34 didn’t return my phone call.
35 TOMMY DUNN:  Yes, ma’am, I did.  You
36 never did call me.  I’ve got it recorded.  I saved it
37 just because of that knowing that I returned that phone
38 call.  I never did get one.  I never did get nothing
39 back.  But I did call you.  Yes, ma’am.  I’ve got it on
40 this phone right here.
41 TARA FLYNN:  Okay.  
42 TOMMY DUNN:  Okay.  Go ahead.
43 TARA FLYNN:  It’s funny that you
44 would do that.
45 TOMMY DUNN:  No.  The way you talked
46 I knowed that something was up.  Believe you me.
47 TARA FLYNN:  I was arrested on my own
48 property by somebody who -- by an officer Mason P.
49 Smith after a neighbor came over and complained that I
50 was trespassing.  It wasn’t his property.  After I put



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - October 19, 2021
30

1 my cigarette butt down on the driveway of the property
2 that I basically own with a husband, with the man that
3 I live with, it’s his property, after I did that, I was
4 told to pick up that cigarette.  And I said, no,
5 because it’s private property.  There’s already an
6 agreement in place between me and the owner about where
7 I can put my cigarettes.  And so then Mason P. Smith
8 turned to the complainant who is not the owner of the
9 home and said, sir, would you like her to pick up that
10 cigarette?  Basically saying that he didn’t have the
11 authority to make me pick that up unless he told him
12 to.  
13 And when the guy that didn’t own the home said yes,
14 I do want her to pick it up.  Basically he said yes. 
15 Then Mason P. Smith turned around and said, ma’am, pick
16 up that cigarettes.  And I said, no.  And he slammed me
17 to the ground and put handcuffs on me.  I peed my
18 pants.  He took me to jail.  I was never offered
19 another pair of pants until the next morning when it
20 was time for me to see the judge.  I had to sleep naked
21 because I didn’t want to sleep with pee.  There was a
22 camera in there the whole time.  I don’t know who’s
23 watching that camera.  And there’s all kind of
24 violations being made right there.  One, under color of
25 state law because there’s a conspiracy being done right
26 there on my driveway of the property that I have a lot
27 more to do with than a neighbor.  
28 I’ve asked for a jury trial.  I can’t get one
29 because it’s been rescheduled.  I can’t find it in
30 ACPASS with all the other arrests that have been made
31 from me being on that property that I was taken to by
32 the owner.  I can’t get -- and that’s not even the
33 short of it.  
34 I’ve been arrested two more times for trespassing
35 there, being taken there or advised to go there by the
36 owner.  Which would be a rental agreement between me
37 and him, regardless of how long or if it’s written
38 down, an agreement between a landlord and tenant.
39 LEON HARMON:  Time, Mr. Chairman.
40 TOMMY DUNN:  Your time is up, ma’am. 
41 You only have three minutes.  But I advise you, if
42 you’ve got a beef or a problem with the sheriff’s ---
43 TARA FLYNN:  I just want to say --
44 and I’ll be done here.  That’ll be fine.  But I’ve
45 called the sheriff’s office and I have had deputies
46 come out to my home when I said that my children were
47 raped and we were given date rape drugs at a house and
48 officers told me ---
49 TOMMY DUNN:  Ma’am, your time ---
50 TARA FLYNN:  --- yeah, that sounds



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - October 19, 2021
31

1 weird, but not taking ---
2 TOMMY DUNN:  Your time is up, ma’am.
3 TARA FLYNN:  It might be up.
4 TOMMY DUNN:  Yes, ma’am.  Yes, ma’am. 
5 Comments from council members.  Mr. Jimmy Davis.
6 JIMMY DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chair. 
7 On October 12th I had the pleasure, and kind of
8 embarrassed, it was the first time I had been to the
9 Anderson County Museum.  But I went to the Hall of Fame
10 ceremony out there, and I must say -- I just want to
11 comment that our staff out there runs an excellent,
12 excellent facility.  And I will be back with more
13 people.  And Director Childs is actually going to come
14 up to District 6 and speak on the museum soon.  I’m
15 just very thankful that we have that staff out there. 
16 They do an excellent job.
17 Secondly, Mr. Chair, I would like to speak -- we
18 are experiencing rain events, more common now than
19 we’ve ever seen.  You know, what used to be a hundred
20 year flood is now becoming more frequent in our
21 environment.  And I think, you know, it has a lot to do
22 with growth.  And we’re seeing more stormwater
23 problems.  We’ve been talking about this for quite
24 sometime, Mr. Chair.  
25 Mr. Chair, I would like to see us maybe do some
26 type of subcommittee, maybe just think about this,
27 where we could have an ad hoc committee just to deal
28 with stormwater and maybe see where our standards might
29 be lacking and see if we can get some help.  I received
30 -- of course, we had ten inches of rain in two days,
31 but I received numerous calls and videos of people in
32 tremendous peril.  I’ve like to see us start maybe
33 looking towards that.  I talked to Jon Batson and he’s
34 in agreement that maybe we need to up our standards a
35 little bit on stormwater and try to do some different
36 things to prevent some of the things that we have had
37 happening down the road after we’ve all gone.  Thank
38 you, Mr. Chair.
39 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr. Davis.
40 Mr. Sanders.
41 BRETT SANDERS:  Nothing at this time,
42 sir.
43 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Glenn Davis.
44 GLENN DAVIS:  Nothing at this time,
45 sir.
46 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr. Davis. 
47 Mr. Graham.
48 RAY GRAHAM:  Nothing at this time,
49 Mr. Chairman.
50 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  Mr. Wright.



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - October 19, 2021
32

1 JOHN WRIGHT:  Nothing at this time,
2 sir.
3 TOMMY DUNN:  Ms. Wilson.
4 CINDY WILSON:  Well, you always know
5 the big mouth down here at the end has something to
6 say.
7 Well, I just wanted to point out we had a wonderful
8 announcement yesterday opening the kayak facility at
9 Belton.  It took lots of people working together, but
10 it’s a wonderful facility.  And it adds to our Blue
11 Trail starting up at Dolly Cooper Park.  Duke Power,
12 our senators.  It’s just a wonderful partnership that
13 makes these facilities happen.  
14 And I did want to point out, among the many
15 considerations on our Planning Commission and Zoning
16 issues is that property rights aren’t limited to simply
17 the parcel in question.  We also have to take into
18 consideration the impact to the neighbors.  If it’s
19 going to devalue the investment of their property, then
20 it should be looked at very carefully and not be made
21 to do that.  If it impacts their quiet enjoyment of
22 their property, which is a legal term, then there
23 should be some mitigating factor there.  
24 On the water runoff issues, oh, my goodness, we had
25 so much going on.  And we’ve got a lot of culverts and
26 roads and streams that we’ve never factored in the
27 additional load of impervious surfaces from new
28 developments running into a small area.  And obviously
29 water runs downhill.  And when you have those volumes
30 it runs fast and it does a lot of damage.  So maybe we
31 can convene a Planning and Public Works Committee soon. 
32 I’ve been on the phone back and forth with Mr.
33 Batson on what the city has done to my district. 
34 Nineteen acres with a hundred houses supposedly coming
35 in.  They bulldozed everything.  They had a stormwater
36 retention pond on one end.  They discharged it into the
37 county and onto private property and into the SCDOT
38 ditch, and it went right under the road within a
39 hundred feet and silted a pond in.  Their water
40 retention pond up at the other end, they were having to
41 discharge into the county ditches.  So we’ve got to
42 come up with some way to be sensible and effective in
43 those considerations.
44 So thank y’all.
45 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank y’all.
46 I just want to thank the county staff, all what
47 they done.  They really worked hard during these -- and
48 got numerous phone calls on the -- all the rain we had
49 the other week.  We had, according to where you was at,
50 seven inches of rain plus.  And I know they’re



Anderson County  Council - County  Council Meeting - October 19, 2021
33

1 inundated.  And they get a lot of phone calls and
2 stuff.  You couldn’t dig a ditch in front of somebody’s
3 house to take care of that kind of rain.  And I
4 appreciate what all they done and the hard work in a
5 short period of time. 
6 I heard these comments from council tonight, so we
7 will be taking these under advisement and putting
8 together some stuff.  Because we do need to get ahead
9 of some stuff before it gets to be a problem. 
10 Education is a big thing on this.
11 And last but not least, I want to thank everybody
12 for the -- all the folks for their prayers and kind
13 words for me and my family this week.
14 Meeting be adjourned.
15
16 (MEETING ADJOURNED AT 7:55 P.M.)











































Ordinance #2021-057 
Page 1 of 3 

Highway 81 N & Evergreen Rd 

 
Ordinance #2021-057 

 
An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning 

Ordinance, as adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County 

Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 20.5 acres from C-2 (Highway Commercial 

District) to I-2 (Industrial Park District) on a parcel of land, identified as 

Highway 81 North & Evergreen Rd in the North Pointe Precinct shown in Deed 

Book 4293 page 163. The parcel is further identified as TMS #144-00-04-008. 

 
Whereas, Anderson County, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision 

of the State of South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its County 

Council (the “County Council”) has previously adopted Anderson County 
Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance (the “Ordinance”), 

which Ordinance contains the Anderson County Official Zoning Map (the “Map”); 
and, 

 
Whereas, the Ordinance contains provisions providing for the amendment of the 

Map; and, 
 

Whereas, County Council desires to amend the Map by adopting a zoning map 

amendment from C-2 to I-2 for +/- 20.5 acres of TMS #144-00-04-008 described 

above; and, 
 

Whereas, the Anderson County Planning Commission has held a duly advertised 

Public Hearing on September 14, 2021, during which it reviewed the proposed 
rezoning from to C-2 to I-2 +/- 20.5 acres of TMS #144-00-04-008 described above; 

and, 
 
Whereas, the Anderson County Council has duly advertised and held a Public 

Hearing on October 19, 2021, regarding said amendment of the Anderson County 
Official Zoning Map:  

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 

  



Ordinance #2021-057 
Page 2 of 3 

Highway 81 N & Evergreen Rd 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council, in meeting duly 

assembled, that: 

 
 

1. The Anderson County Council hereby finds that this proposed rezoning is 

consistent with the Anderson County Comprehensive Plan and in accord 
with requirements of the South Carolina Code of Laws Title 6, Chapter 29, 

Article 5. 
 

2. The Anderson County Council hereby amends the Anderson County 

Official Zoning Map as previously adopted July 20, 1999, by Anderson 
County Ordinance #99-004 to rezone from C-2 to I-2 +/- 20.5 acres of 

TMS #144-00-04-008 described above.         
 

3. Should any portion of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
determination shall not affect the remaining terms and provisions of this 

ordinance, all of which  are hereby deemed separable. 
 

4. All orders, resolutions, and enactments of Anderson County Council 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby 

repealed, revoked, and rescinded. 
 

5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and 

after third reading and enactment by Anderson County Council.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance #2021-057 
Page 3 of 3 

Highway 81 N & Evergreen Rd 

 
ATTEST:  Ordinance 2021-057 

 
 

 
_____________________________         __________________________________   

Rusty Burns     Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
 

 
 

_____________________________    
Janie L. Turmon       
Assistant Clerk to Council 

              
   

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

        

 
 
     

Anderson County Attorney  
     

 
1st Reading:     October 5, 2021 
 

2nd Reading:  October 19, 2021 
 

3rd Reading:   November 2, 2021 
 

Public Hearing: October 19, 2021 
 
 

 
 



Ordinance #2021-058 
Page 1 of 3 

Royal American Rd & Driftwood Way 

 
Ordinance #2021-058 

 
An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning 

Ordinance, as adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County 

Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 16.22 acres from C-2 (Highway Commercial 

District) & R-15 (Single Family Residential) to R-M (Multifamily Residential) on 

a parcel of land, identified as Royal American Rd and Driftwood Way, in the 

Denver-Sandy Springs Precinct shown in Deed Book 2462 page 186. The 

parcel is further identified as TMS #93-02-02-060, TMS #93-02-02-062, and TMS 

#93-02-02-063. 

 
Whereas, Anderson County, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision 

of the State of South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its County 
Council (the “County Council”) has previously adopted Anderson County 

Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance (the “Ordinance”), 
which Ordinance contains the Anderson County Official Zoning Map (the “Map”); 

and, 

 
Whereas, the Ordinance contains provisions providing for the amendment of the 

Map; and, 
 
Whereas, County Council desires to amend the Map by adopting a zoning map 

amendment from C-2 & R-15 to R-M for +/- 16.22 acres of TMS #93-02-02-060, TMS 
#93-02-02-062, and TMS #93-02-02-063 described above; and, 

 

Whereas, the Anderson County Planning Commission has held a duly advertised 

Public Hearing on September 14, 2021, during which it reviewed the proposed 

rezoning from to C-2 & R-15 to R-M +/- 16.22 acres of TMS #93-02-02-060, TMS #93-
02-02-062, and TMS #93-02-02-063 described above; and, 

 
Whereas, the Anderson County Council has duly advertised and held a Public 

Hearing on October 19, 2021, regarding said amendment of the Anderson County 

Official Zoning Map:  
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 

  



Ordinance #2021-058 
Page 2 of 3 

Royal American Rd & Driftwood Way 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council, in meeting duly 

assembled, that: 

 
 

1. The Anderson County Council hereby finds that this proposed rezoning is 

consistent with the Anderson County Comprehensive Plan and in accord 
with requirements of the South Carolina Code of Laws Title 6, Chapter 29, 

Article 5. 
 

2. The Anderson County Council hereby amends the Anderson County 

Official Zoning Map as previously adopted July 20, 1999, by Anderson 
County Ordinance #99-004 to rezone from C-2 & R-15 to R-M +/- 16.22 

acres of TMS #93-02-02-060, TMS #93-02-02-062, and TMS #93-02-02-
063 described above.         

 

3. Should any portion of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
determination shall not affect the remaining terms and provisions of this 

ordinance, all of which  are hereby deemed separable. 
 

4. All orders, resolutions, and enactments of Anderson County Council 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby 

repealed, revoked, and rescinded. 
 

5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and 

after third reading and enactment by Anderson County Council.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance #2021-058 
Page 3 of 3 

Royal American Rd & Driftwood Way 

 
 

ATTEST:  Ordinance 2021-058 
 
 

 
_____________________________         __________________________________   

Rusty Burns     Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 

 
 
 

_____________________________    
Janie L. Turmon       

Assistant Clerk to Council 
              
   

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

        

 
 

     
Anderson County Attorney  
     

 
1st Reading:     October 5, 2021 

 
2nd Reading:  October 19, 2021 
 

3rd Reading:   November 2, 2021 
 

Public Hearing: October 19, 2021 
 

 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2021-060 
 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE 2010 JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND 

BUSINESS PARK AGREEMENT WITH GREENVILLE COUNTY, SOUTH 
CAROLINA SO AS TO ENLARGE THE PARK, AND OTHER MATTERS 
RELATING THERETO. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Greenville County, South Carolina (“Greenville County”) and Anderson County, South 
Carolina (“Anderson County” and together with Greenville County, the “Counties”) are authorized under 
Article VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution and Section 4-1-170 of the Code of Laws of South 
Carolina, 1976, as amended (the “Act”), to jointly develop an industrial or business park within the 
geographical boundaries of one or more of the member Counties; 
 
 WHEREAS, in order to promote the economic welfare of the citizens of the Counties by providing 
employment and other benefits to the citizens of the Counties, the Counties agreed to so jointly develop an 
industrial and business park (the “Park”) through the delivery by the parties of an Agreement for the 
Development of a Joint County Industrial and Business Park (2010 Park) dated as of December 1, 2010, as 
amended (collectively, the “Park Agreement”);  
 
 WHEREAS, the Park Agreement, by its terms, contemplates the expansion of the Park by inclusion 
of additional parcels within the Park from time to time, pursuant to ordinances of the county councils of 
Greenville County and Anderson County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Counties now desire to amend the Park Agreement to expand the Park to include 
certain parcels in Greenville County as additional parcels in the Park;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL: 

 SECTION 1: It is hereby determined that the Park Agreement is hereby amended for purposes of 
expanding the Park premises located in Greenville County to include the property described in Schedule I 
attached hereto (the “Property”). Accordingly, upon enactment of a corresponding ordinance of approval by 
Greenville County Council, Exhibit A to the Park Agreement shall hereby be deemed amended, without further 
action by the Counties, to include the Property. 
 
 SECTION 2: This Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon enactment. 
 
 



2 

 ENACTED this 2nd day of November, 2021.  
 
 
      ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
 
      ______________________________________________  
      Chairman, Anderson County Council  
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Clerk to County Council 
 
 
1st Reading: October 5, 2021 
2nd Reading: October 19, 2021 
3rd Reading: November 2, 2021 
 
Public Hearing: October 19, 2021 
 



I-1 

 
SCHEDULE I 

 
Addition to Exhibit A 

to Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and Business Park (2010 Park) 
dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, 

between Greenville County and Anderson County 
 
 
Greenville County TMS Numbers: 
 
0001000200200 
0002000700100 
0223000200106 
0293000100910 
0400010101000 
0530050102001 
0547010100202 
0609040101402 
M008040100313 
M011010100317 
M015070100103 
T010020101200 
T010020101205 
WG06020200300 
Piedmont Natural Gas Co Inc. properties under Greenville County Ordinance No. 3938 
 



 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON 
 

I, the undersigned Clerk of the County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby 
certify that the foregoing is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received majority approval, by the County Council at meetings of October 5, 2021, October 19, 2021 and 
November 2, 2021, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and voted, and 
an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 
 
 WITNESS MY HAND this 2nd day of November, 2021.  
 
 
 
 ____________________________________ 
 Clerk to County Council of  
 Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2021-062 

AN ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE APPROVAL FOR ANDERSON COUNTY TO GRANT A 
PERPETUAL AND NON-EXCLUSIVE EASEMENT UNTO DUKE ENERGY CAROLINAS, 
LLC FOR THE REAL PROPERTY BEING 0.80 ACRES, COMMON AREA, HALTER DRIVE, 
PIEDMONT, SC 29673 BEARING ANDERSON COUNTY TAX MAP NUMBER 237-08-03-
001 TO FACILITATE THE RELOCATION OF ELECTRIC AND COMMUNICATION LINES; 
AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO 

 WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina (the “County”) acting by and through its 

County Council (the “County Council”) is authorized under Title 4 of the Code of Laws of the 

State of South Carolina, as amended, to lease, sell, or otherwise dispose of real and personal 

property; and  

 WHEREAS, the County owns the real property commonly known as 0.80 acres, more or 

less, Common Area Halter Drive, Piedmont, SC 29673 bearing Anderson County Tax Map 

Number 237-08-03-001 (the “Property”) located within the County of Anderson;  

 WHEREAS, Duke Energy of the Carolinas, LLC (“Duke Energy”) has requested a 

perpetual and non-exclusive easement to construct, reconstruct, operate, patrol, maintain, repair, 

replace, relocate, add to, modify, and remove electric and communication lines including, but not 

limited to, all necessary supporting structures, and all other appurtenant apparatus and equipment 

for the transmission and distribution of electrical energy, and for technological purposes related to 

the operation of the electric facilities and for the communication purposes of Incumbent Local 

Exchange Carriers (the “Easement”) on the Property;  

 WHEREAS, the County desires to grant unto Duke Energy the requested Easement on the 

Property.  

 NOW THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council, in a duly assembled 

meeting, that:  

1. Anderson County Council hereby approves the grant of the Easement to Duke Energy on 

the Property and that such Easement is further described and set forth on that certain 

Easement and Project Work Map attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by 

reference thereto and further directs the Anderson County Administrator and Chairman of 

County Council to execute all documents related thereto on behalf of the County.  

2. All Orders and Ordinances in conflict herewith are, to the extent of such conflict only, 

hereby repealed and rescinded.  



3. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions and actions of Anderson County Council inconsistent

herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked and

rescinded.

4. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon Third Reading and Enactment by

Anderson County Council.

ENACTED in a duly assembled meeting this ____ day of ______, 2021. 

ATTEST: FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

___________________________ ___________________________________ 
By: Rusty Burns  By: Tommy Dunn  
Its: Administrator   Its: Chairman, Anderson County Council   

_____________________________ 
By: __________________________ 
Its: Clerk to Council  

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_____________________________ 
By: Leon C. Harmon 
Its: County Attorney  

First Reading:  
Second Reading: 
Third Reading:  
Public Hearing:  



Exhibit A

BMInsog
Text Box
Parcel 2Owner: Maximiliano & Juan Leon Garcia Tax Id#: 2370005001Add: 3140-3148 River Rd

BMInsog
Text Box
WO# 38523158SC 153 & RIVER RDANDERSON COUNTYSOUTH CAROLINA

BMInsog
Text Box
Parcel 1Owner: Anderson CountyTax Id#: 2370803001Add: Halter Dr & River Rd

BMInsog
Line

BMInsog
Line



For Grantee’s Internal Use:  
Work Order #: 38523158  1  

Prepared by: Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC 
Return to: Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC 

Attn: c/o Southeastern Land Company 
PO Box 1241 

 Conway, SC 29528 

Parcel # 2370803001 
 

 

 
EASEMENT 

State of South Carolina  

County of Anderson 

 

THIS EASEMENT (“Easement”) is made this ____ day of _____________ 20____, from  

ANDERSON COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina  (“Grantor”, whether one 

or more), to DUKE ENERGY CAROLINAS, LLC, a North Carolina limited liability company 

(“Grantee”). 

 
Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of One and 00/100 Dollar ($1.00) and other good and 

valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, does hereby grant 
unto Grantee a perpetual and non-exclusive easement, to construct, reconstruct, operate, patrol, maintain, 
repair, replace, relocate, add to, modify, and remove electric and communication lines including, but not 
limited to, all necessary supporting structures, and all other appurtenant apparatus and equipment for the 
transmission and distribution of electrical energy, and for technological purposes related to the operation 
of the electric facilities and for the communication purposes of Incumbent Local Exchange Carriers 
(collectively, “Facilities”). Grantor is the owner of that certain property described in that instrument 
recorded in Deed Book 14495, Page 23, Anderson County Register of Deeds (“Property”). The Facilities 
may be both overhead and underground and located in, upon, over, along, under, through, and across a 
portion of the Property within an easement area described as follows: A strip of land thirty feet (30’) in 
uniform width for the overhead portion of said Facilities and a strip of land twenty feet (20’) in uniform 
width for the underground portion of said Facilities, lying equidistant on both sides of a centerline, which 
centerline shall be established by the center of the Facilities as installed, along with an area ten feet (10’) 
wide on all sides of the foundation of any Grantee enclosure/transformer, vault and/or manhole, 
(hereinafter referred to as the “Easement Area”). 

The rights granted herein include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 

1. Grantee shall have the right of ingress and egress over the Easement Area, Property, and any 
adjoining lands now owned or hereinafter acquired by Grantor (using lanes, driveways, and 
adjoining public roads where practical as determined by Grantee). 

2. Grantee shall have the right to trim, cut down, and remove from the Easement Area, at any time 
or times and using safe and generally accepted arboricultural practices, trees, limbs, undergrowth, 
other vegetation, and obstructions. 



For Grantee’s Internal Use:  
Work Order #: 38523158  2  

3. Grantee shall have the right to trim, cut down, and remove from the Property, at any time or times 
and using safe and generally accepted arboricultural practices, dead, diseased, weak, dying, or 
leaning trees or limbs, which, in the opinion of Grantee, might fall upon the Easement Area or 
interfere with the safe and reliable operation of the Facilities. 

4. Grantee shall have the right to install necessary guy wires and anchors extending beyond the 
boundaries of the Easement Area.  

5. Grantee shall have the right to relocate the Facilities and Easement Area on the Property to 
conform to any future highway or street relocation, widening, or alterations. 

6. Grantor shall not place, or permit the placement of, any structures, improvements, facilities, or 
obstructions, within or adjacent to the Easement Area, which may interfere with the exercise of 
the rights granted herein to Grantee. Grantee shall have the right to remove any such structure, 
improvement, facility, or obstruction at the expense of Grantor. 

7. Excluding the removal of vegetation, structures, improvements, facilities, and obstructions as 
provided herein, Grantee shall promptly repair or cause to be repaired any physical damage to the 
surface area of the Easement Area and Property resulting from the exercise of the rights granted 
herein to Grantee. Such repair shall be to a condition which is reasonably close to the condition 
prior to the damage, and shall only be to the extent such damage was caused by Grantee or its 
contractors or employees. 

8. The rights granted in this Easement include the right to install Facilities wherever needed on the 
Property to serve future development on the Property and adjoining lands.  Portions of the 
Facilities may be installed immediately and other portions may be installed in the future as the 
need develops.  Facilities installed in the future shall be installed at locations mutually agreeable 
to the parties hereto if they are to be located outside of the Easement Area.  Upon any future 
installations of Facilities at mutually agreed locations, the Easement Area shall be deemed to 
include such future locations. 

9. All other rights and privileges reasonably necessary, in Grantee’s sole discretion, for the safe, 
reliable, and efficient installation, operation, and maintenance of the Facilities. 
 
The terms Grantor and Grantee shall include the respective heirs, successors, and assigns of 

Grantor and Grantee. The failure of Grantee to exercise or continue to exercise or enforce any of the 
rights herein granted shall not be construed as a waiver or abandonment of the right thereafter at any time, 
or from time to time, to exercise any and all such rights. 

 
TO HAVE AND TO HOLD said rights, privilege, and easement unto Grantee, its successors, 

licensees, and assigns, forever. Grantor warrants and covenants that Grantor has the full right and 
authority to convey to Grantee this perpetual Easement, and that Grantee shall have quiet and peaceful 
possession, use and enjoyment of the same.  



For Grantee’s Internal Use:  
Work Order #: 38523158  3  

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has signed this Easement under seal effective this ____ day 

of _________, 20_____. 
 
Witnesses: 
 
 ANDERSON COUNTY     
____________________________________ a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina  
(Witness #1) 
 
 
    (SEAL) 

 

(Witness #2) By: ____________________________, _______Title 
 
 
STATE OF __________________________ 
 
COUNTY OF ________________________ 
 
 
I, _______________________________, a Notary Public of ____________________ County, State of  

 

__________________________, certify that ____________________________, as ______________  of 

 

 ANDERSON COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina, personally appeared before 

 

 me this day and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing EASEMENT. 

 

Witness my hand and notarial seal, this ____ day of _____________________, 20_____. 

 

 Notary Public: _________________________ 

 Commission Expires: ____________________ 



Anderson County

November 30, 2020   Disclaimer accepted.

·
1 in = 251 ft

0 0.05 0.10.025 mi

0 0.08 0.160.04 km

TMS: 2370803001
Owner: ANDERSON COUNTY

Deed Book: 14495 Deed Page:23

Owner Address:101 S MAIN ST
City/State: ANDERSON  SC Zip Code: 29621

Tax District: 1
Sale Year: 2020 Sale Price:$1 Market Value:$3,000

ESRI, Highland Mapping, and Anderson County GISDescription:COMMON AREA HALTER DR   .80 AC
Current Plat: CP S 1323/10



A-1 

ORDINANCE NO. _2021-063 

 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN AGREEMENT FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF 

A JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND BUSINESS PARK (2010 PARK) OF 

ANDERSON AND GREENVILLE COUNTIES SO AS TO ENLARGE THE PARK. 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2010-026 enacted October 19, 2010 by Anderson County 
Council, Anderson County entered into an Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 
Business Park (2010 Park) dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, with Greenville County (the 
“Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3(A) of the Agreement, the boundaries of the park created therein 
(the “Park”) may be enlarged pursuant to ordinances of the County Councils of Anderson County and 
Greenville County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with certain incentives being offered by Greenville County to Project 
Storybook, it is now desired that the boundaries of the Park be enlarged to include certain parcels in 
Greenville County;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council that Exhibit A to the 
Agreement is hereby and shall be amended and revised to include property located in Greenville County 
described in the schedule attached to this Ordinance, and, pursuant to Section 3(B) of the Agreement, upon 
adoption by Greenville County of a corresponding ordinance, the Agreement shall be deemed amended to so 
include such property and Exhibit A as so revised, without further action by either county. 
 
 DONE in meeting duly assembled this ____ day of_______________, 20__.  
 
 
 ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

(SEAL) By:________________________________________ 
  Chairman, Anderson County Council 
 
Attest: 

By:_______________________________ 
 Anderson County Administrator 
 
 
By:_______________________________ 
 Clerk to Anderson County Council 
 
 
 
First Reading: _________, 20__  
Second Reading: _________, 20__  
Third Reading: _________, 20__  
Public Hearing: _________, 20__  



A-2 

 
Addition to Exhibit A to 

Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 
Business Park dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, 

between Anderson County and Greenville County 
 
 
 
 



 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 

      ) 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON    ) 

 
 I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received majority approval, by the County Council at meetings of_________, 20__, _________, 20__ and 
_________, 20__, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and voted, and 
an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Clerk, Anderson County Council 
 
 
Dated: _________, 20__ 



1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021- 064 

 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO AN EXISTING FEE IN LIEU OF 
TAX AGREEMENT BETWEEN ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA AND MILLIKEN 
& COMPANY TO EXTEND THE INVESTMENT PERIOD FOR AN ADDITIONAL FIVE 
YEARS, IN RETURN AND EXPECTATION FOR ADDITIONAL INVESTMENT IN THE 
COUNTY, AND TO PROVIDE FOR THE PROVISION OF CERTAIN SPECIAL SOURCE 
REVENUE CREDITS/INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT CREDITS; AND OTHER 
MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

 
WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its 

County Council (the “County Council”) and pursuant to the provisions of the Code of Laws of South 
Carolina, 1976, as amended (the “Code”), and specifically Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code (the 
“FILOT Act”) and pursuant to an Ordinance duly enacted (the “Ordinance”), did heretofore enter into 
a Fee in Lieu of Tax Agreement (the “FILOT Agreement”), dated as of November 15, 2016, with 
Milliken & Company, a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), pursuant to which the Company 
agreed to make, and the County agreed to accept, negotiated fee in lieu of tax (“FILOT”) payments 
with respect to certain capital facilities located within the County as more particularly described in the 
FILOT Agreement (the “Project”); and 

 
WHEREAS, Company is considering making additional investment in the Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the requirement of Section 12-44-30(13) of the FILOT 

Act, Company has applied to the County seeking a five year extension of the Investment Period 
(as such term is defined in the FILOT Agreement); and 

 
WHEREAS, in order to induce Company to increase its investment within the County, in 

accordance with Section 12-44-30(13) of the FILOT Act, the County desires to extend the period 
for completion of the Project by an additional five (5) years, to a new total Investment Period of 
ten (10) years, which extension is intended to amount to the maximum extension of such period 
permitted by current law and pursuant to Title 4, Chapter 1 of the Code (the “Multi-County Park 
Act”), and Title 4, Chapter 29, of the Code, to provide infrastructure credits against payment in lieu 
of taxes for reimbursement in respect of investment in certain infrastructure enhancing the economic 
development of the County; through all such powers the industrial development of the State of South 
Carolina (the “State”) will be promoted and trade developed by inducing manufacturing and 
commercial enterprises to locate or remain in the State and thus utilize and employ the manpower, 
products and resources of the State and benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing 
services, employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided locally; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County has previously approved the Company’s extension request 

pursuant to that certain Resolution adopted on _______________, 2021; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Company has represented that the Company will increase its minimum 

investment in the Project from at least $2,500,000 to at least $5,000,00, within the Investment Period, 
as extended for a period totaling ten (10) years; and 
 



2 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority of Section 4-1-170 of the Multi-County Park Act and 
Article VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution, the County intends to cause the Project, 
to the extent not already therein located, to be placed in a joint county industrial and business park 
such that the Project will receive the benefits of the Multi-County Park Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County desires to enter into an amendment to the FILOT Agreement 
provide for certain special source revenue credits/infrastructure improvement credits to be claimed 
by the Company against its payments of fees-in-lieu-of taxes with respect to the Project pursuant to 
Section 4-1-175 of the Multi-County Park Act and to reflect the new minimum investment in the 
Project, which is a material condition to the County granting the credits described herein and 
extending the Investment Period; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the County Council has caused to be prepared and presented to this meeting the 
form of draft First Amendment to Fee in Lieu of Tax Agreement (the “First Amendment”) which the 
County proposes to execute and deliver; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it appears that the document above referred to, which is now before this 
meeting, is in appropriate form and is an appropriate instrument to be executed and delivered or 
approved by the County for the purposes intended;   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by Anderson County, South Carolina, as 
follows: 
 

Section 1. The form, terms, and provisions of the First Amendment presented to this 
meeting and filed with the Clerk to County Council or Assistant Clerk to County Council be and they 
are hereby approved, and all of the terms, provisions, and conditions thereof are hereby incorporated 
herein by reference as if the First Amendment were set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. The 
Chairman of County Council, the Administrator of the County, the Clerk to County Council and/or the 
Assistant Clerk to County Council be and hereby are authorized, empowered, and directed to execute, 
acknowledge, and deliver the First Amendment in the name and on behalf of the County, and thereupon 
to cause the First Amendment to be delivered to the Company. The First Amendment is to be in 
substantially the form now before this meeting and hereby approved, or with such changes therein as 
shall not materially adversely affect the rights of the County thereunder and as shall be approved by 
the officials of the County executing the same, upon the advice of counsel to the County, their 
execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of their approval of any and all changes or revisions 
therein from the form of First Amendment now before this meeting. 

 
Section 2. The Chairman of County Council, the County Administrator, the Clerk to the 

County Council and the Assistant Clerk to County Council, for and on behalf of the County, are hereby 
each authorized and directed to do any and all things necessary or proper to effect the execution and 
delivery of the First Amendment, and the performance of all obligations of the County under and 
pursuant to the First Amendment. The Chairman of County Council, the County Administrator, the 
Clerk to County Council, the Assistant Clerk to County Council and any other proper officer of County, 
be and each of them is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver any and all documents 
and instruments and to do and to cause to be done any and all acts and things necessary or proper for 
carrying out the transactions contemplated by this Ordinance. 



3 

 
Section 3. The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be separable and if any 

section, phrase, or provision shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
invalid or unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, 
phrases, and provisions hereunder. 

 
Section 4. All orders, resolutions, ordinances, and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, 

to the extent of such conflict only, hereby repealed and this Ordinance shall take effect and be in full 
force from and after its passage and approval. 
  

WITNESS our hands and seals this _______ day of _________________, 2021. 
 
      ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

 
 
              
      Tommy Dunn, Chairman 

Anderson County Council 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
        
Rusty Burns, County Administrator 
Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
        
Janie L. Turmon, Assistant Clerk to Council 
Anderson County, South Carolina 
 

 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Leon C. Harmon, County Attorney 
Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
First Reading:  _________________, 2021 
Second Reading: _________________, 2021 
Third Reading:  _________________, 2021 
Public Hearing: _________________, 2021 
 
 
NPGVL1:2107402.1 



   
1 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THAT CERTAIN FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT 

DATED AS OF NOVEMBER 15, 2016 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO THAT CERTAIN FEE IN LIEU OF TAX 

AGREEMENT DATED AS OF NOVEMBER 15, 2016 (the “First Amendment”) made and 
entered into as of _________________, 2021, by and between ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH 

CAROLINA, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State of South 
Carolina (the “County”) and MILLIKEN & COMPANY, a Delaware corporation ( the 
“Company”). 

RECITALS 

A. The County and the Company did heretofore enter into that certain Fee in Lieu of 
Tax Agreement dated as of November 15, 2016 (the “Fee Agreement”), pursuant to which the 
Company agreed to make, and the County agreed to accept, negotiated fee in lieu of tax payments 
with respect to the Project (as defined in the  Fee Agreement). 

 
B. The Company has applied for a five year extension of the Project Standard 

Investment Period (as defined in the Fee Agreement) as permitted under Section 12-44-30(13) of 
the Code (as defined in the Fee Agreement) and has requested a special source revenue 
credit/infrastructure improvement credit against FILOT Payments as defined in the Fee 
Agreement”) as permitted by law and pursuant to Title 4, Chapter 1 of the Code (the “Multi-County 
Park Act” and Title 4, Chapter 29 of the Code , and the County desires to extend the Standard 
Investment Period by an additional five years, in accordance with Section 12-44-30(13) of the 
Code and to provide for a special source revenue credit or infrastructure improvement credit 
against FILOT Payments, all in return for the Company’s additional investment in the Project. 

 
C. The County has determined that, in consideration of the Company’s substantial on-

going investment in the Project including the Company’s agreement to increase its minimum 
investment in the Project from at least $2,500,0000 to at least $5,000,000, the economic 
development of the County will be served by such five-year extension of the Project Standard 
Investment Period and by the granting of a special source revenue credit/infrastructure 
improvement credit against the Company’s FILOT Payments for the Project in the Park (all as 
defined in the Fee Agreement as amended); and 

 
D. The County authorized the foregoing actions to be taken for the benefit of the 

Company pursuant to that certain Resolution adopted by the Council with respect to this First 
Amendment on ____________________, 2021 and pursuant to that certain Ordinance with respect 
to this First Amendment on ______________________, 2021. 

TERMS OF FIRST AMENDMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, and respective representations and 
agreements hereinafter contained, and the sum of $10.00 in hand, duly paid by the Company to 
the County, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the County and the 



   
2 

Company agree as follows:  

Section 1.  Definitions.  Defined terms utilized herein and not otherwise defined herein shall 
have the meanings ascribed to them in the Fee Agreement. The recitals set forth above are true and 
correct and hereby incorporated into this First Amendment. 

Section 2.  Amendment of  Fee Agreement.  The Fee Agreement shall be amended as follows: 

(a) The definition of “Contract Minimum Investment Requirement” is hereby 
revised to read as follows:   

“Contract Minimum Investment Requirement” shall mean, with respect to 
the Project, investment by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates of at least collectively 
$5,000,000 (each at least $2,500,000) in Economic Development Property subject to ad valorem 
taxation (in the absence of this Fee Agreement) during the Standard Investment Period”. 

(b) The definition of “Equipment” is hereby amended to add and include 
“improvements”. 

(c) The definition of “Standard Investment Period” is hereby revised to read 
as follows:   

“Standard Investment Period” shall mean the period beginning on the first 
day of any purchase or acquisition of Economic Development Property and ending ten (10) years 
after the Commencement Date.”. 

(d) The following terms are hereby added to Section 1.01 of the Fee Agreement: 

“Infrastructure” shall mean, to the extent provided in Section 4-29-68 of the Code, 
infrastructure serving the County and improved or unimproved real estate and personal property 
including machinery and equipment used in the operation of the Project. 
 

“Infrastructure Costs” shall mean the costs of designing, acquiring, constructing, 
improving, or expanding the Infrastructure serving, or used in the operation of, the Project. 
  

 “Infrastructure Improvement Credit” shall mean the credit in the amount set forth in 
Section 4.02 hereof against the FILOT Payments as authorized by Section 12-44-70 of the Act and 
Section 4-1-175 of the Multi-County Park Act to reimburse the Company for Costs of the 
Infrastructure.  

 

“Park Agreement” shall mean Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial 
and Business Park (2010 Park)  (the “Park”) dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, entered 
into between the County and Greenville County, South Carolina with respect to the Project and 
the land upon which the Project is located. 
 
  (e) The following provision is hereby added to the Fee Agreement as Section 



   
3 

4.02 of the Fee Agreement which Section 4.02 previously had been intentionally omitted. 

“Section 4.02  Infrastructure Improvement Credit   
 

(a) The Company agrees to pay, or cause to be paid, all Infrastructure Costs as 
and when due. The Company agrees that, as of any date during the term of this Fee Agreement, 
the cumulative dollar amount expended by the Company on Infrastructure Costs shall equal or 
exceed the cumulative dollar amount of the Infrastructure Improvement Credit received by the 
Company. Upon the request of the County or at the election of the Company, prior to the first 
year’s Infrastructure Improvement Credit to be credited against the Company’s FILOT Payments 
as provided in Section 4.02(b) hereto, the Company shall certify the cumulative total amount of 
Infrastructure Costs incurred as of December 31 of the year to which such FILOT Payments relate. 
For example, should the Company elect to apply the Infrastructure Improvement Credit against its 
2021 fee in lieu of tax bill, upon the request of the County or the election of the Company, the 
Company shall certify the cumulative total amount of Infrastructure Costs as of December 31, 
2021. The form of such certification is attached hereto as Exhibit A. Upon the request of the 
County, the Company shall re-certify the cumulative amount of Infrastructure Costs incurred if, in 
any year in which an Infrastructure Improvement Credit is to be applied, the cumulative amount 
of Infrastructure Improvement Credits will exceed the cumulative Infrastructure Costs incurred as 
previously certified. 

 
(b) Pursuant to Section 12-44-70 of the Act, the County authorizes and grants 

the Company an Infrastructure Improvement Credit in an annual amount equal to twenty-five 
percent (25%) of the FILOT payments for the Project in the Park, but only with respect to and to 
the extent of the FILOT payments made on behalf of the Project in the Park, for ten (10) 
consecutive years of FILOT payments on behalf of the Project in the Park commencing with 
FILOT Payments made for calendar year 2021. The Treasurer of the County shall display and 
subtract the Infrastructure Improvement Credit from the FILOT Payment statement sent to the 
Company for the duration of the Infrastructure Improvement Credit.” 
 
 (f) In line 7 of Section 4.06 of the Fee Agreement, the words “Contract Minimum 
Investment Requirement” are hereby deleted and the words “FILOT Act Minimum Investment 
Requirement” are substituted in lieu thereof. 
 

Section 3.  Entire Understanding.  Except as expressly amended as set forth above in Section 
2 of this First Amendment, the terms and provisions of the Fee Agreement shall remain unchanged 
and in full force and effect. The Fee Agreement, as amended by this First Amendment, express the 
entire understanding and all agreements of the parties hereto pertaining to the matters set forth 
herein and therein. 

Section 4.  Severability.  In the event that any clause or provisions of this First Amendment 
shall be held to be invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity of such clause or 
provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions hereof. 



   
4 

Section 5.  Multiple Counterparts.  This First Amendment may be executed in multiple 
counterparts, each of which shall be an original but all of which shall constitute but one and the 
same instrument. 

[Signatures begin on next page] 

  



   
5 

 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the County has executed this First Amendment to Fee 
Agreement by causing its name to be hereunto subscribed and to be attested to by the Clerk of its 
County Council and the Company has executed this First Amendment to Fee Agreement being 
done as of the day and year first above written. 
 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
 
              
      Tommy Dunn, Chairman 

Anderson County Council 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
        
Rusty Burns, County Administrator 
Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
        
Janie L. Turmon, Assistant Clerk to Council 
Anderson County, South Carolina 
 

 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Leon C. Harmon, County Attorney 
Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 

[Signature page 1 – First Amendment to Fee Agreement] 

 

  



   
6 

MILLIKEN & COMPANY 
 
 
By: _____________________________________ 

 Print Name: _______________________________ 
 Title: ____________________________________ 

 
 

 
 
 
 

[Signature page 2 – First Amendment to Fee Agreement] 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

NPGVL1:2107411.1 



  
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-066 

 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN AGREEMENT FOR THE 

DEVELOPMENT OF A JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND BUSINESS 

PARK (2010 PARK) OF ANDERSON AND GREENVILLE COUNTIES SO 

AS TO ENLARGE THE PARK; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED 

THERETO. 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2010-026 enacted October 19, 2010 by Anderson 
County Council, Anderson County, South Carolina (“Anderson County”) entered into an 
Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and Business Park (2010 Park) dated 
as of December 1, 2010, as amended (the “Agreement”), with Greenville County, South Carolina 
(“Greenville County”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3(A) of the Agreement, the boundaries of the park created 
therein (the “Park”) may be enlarged pursuant to ordinances of the County Councils of Anderson 
County and Greenville County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with certain incentives being offered by Greenville County, it is 
now desired that the boundaries of the Park be enlarged to include certain parcels located in 
Greenville County. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council that Exhibit A to the 
Agreement is hereby and shall be amended and revised to include, effective as of ____________, 
2021, those certain parcels located in Anderson County described in Schedule 1 attached hereto and 
made part hereof (the “Additional Land”), and, pursuant to Section 3(B) of the Agreement, upon 
adoption by Greenville County of a corresponding ordinance, the Agreement shall be deemed 
amended to so include, effective as of __________, 2021, the Additional Land, without further 
action by either county. 
 

[Signatures on Next Page] 



 
 
 DONE in meeting duly assembled this _____ day of _____________, 2021.  
 
ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

 
 
              
      Tommy Dunn, Chairman 

Anderson County Council 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
        
Rusty Burns, County Administrator 
Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
        
Janie L. Turmon, Assistant Clerk to Council 
Anderson County, South Carolina 
 

 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Leon C. Harmon, County Attorney 
Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
 
First Reading: ____________, 2021  
Second Reading: ____________, 2021  
Third Reading: ____________, 2021  
Public Hearing: ____________, 2021  
 
 
 



 

 SCHEDULE 1 

 

Addition to Exhibit A to Agreement for the Development of a Joint County 
Industrial and Business Park dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, between 

Anderson County and Greenville County 
 

Milliken Properties 
 
1.  Cushman Plant – 409 Gossett Drive, Williamston, SC 29697 
 
2.  Gerrish Milliken Plant – 100 Dalton Drive, Pendleton, SC 29670 
 
3.  Pendleton Finishing Plant – 200 Excelsior Mill Road, Pendleton, SC 29670 (to  
     the extent located in Anderson County) 

 
 



 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 

      ) 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON    ) 

 
 I, the undersigned Assistant Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, 
do hereby certify (i) that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance 
which was given reading, and received majority approval, by the County Council at meetings of 
____________, 2021, ____________, 2021 and __________________, 2021, at which meetings 
a quorum of members of County Council were present and voted, and an original of which 
ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council; and (ii) the public hearing for the 
attached ordinance was conducted by County Council at the County Council meeting of 
_______________, 2021.   
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Janie L. Turmon, Assistant Clerk to Council 

Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
Dated: ________________, 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NPGVL1:2107421.1 



Ordinance #2021-065 

Page 1 of 3 

Highway 81 N 

 
Ordinance #2021-065 

 
An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning 

Ordinance, as adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County 

Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 29.01 acres from C-1 (Commercial District) 

to R-M1 (Mixed Residential District) on a parcel of land, identified as 29.01 

acres on Highway 81 N in the Hopewell Precinct shown in Deed Book 11963 

page 00015. The parcel is further identified as TMS #145-00-06-001. 

 
Whereas, Anderson County, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision 

of the State of South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its County 

Council (the “County Council”) has previously adopted Anderson County 

Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance (the “Ordinance”), 

which Ordinance contains the Anderson County Official Zoning Map (the “Map”); 

and, 

 
Whereas, the Ordinance contains provisions providing for the amendment of the 

Map; and, 

 

Whereas, County Council desires to amend the Map by adopting a zoning map 

amendment from C-1 to R-M1 for +/- 29.01 acres of TMS #145-00-06-001 described 

above; and, 

 

Whereas, the Anderson County Planning Commission has held a duly advertised 

Public Hearing on October 12, 2021, during which it reviewed the proposed rezoning 

from C-1 to R-M1 for +/- 29.01 acres of TMS #145-00-06-001 described above; and, 

 

Whereas, the Anderson County Council has duly advertised and held a Public 

Hearing on November 16, 2021, regarding said amendment of the Anderson County 

Official Zoning Map:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 

  



Ordinance #2021-065 

Page 2 of 3 

Highway 81 N 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council, in meeting duly 

assembled, that: 

 

 

1. The Anderson County Council hereby finds that this proposed rezoning is 

consistent with the Anderson County Comprehensive Plan and in accord 

with requirements of the South Carolina Code of Laws Title 6, Chapter 29, 

Article 5. 

 

2. The Anderson County Council hereby amends the Anderson County 

Official Zoning Map as previously adopted July 20, 1999, by Anderson 

County Ordinance #99-004 to rezone from C-1 to R-M1 for +/- 29.01 

acres of TMS #145-00-06-001 described above.         

 

3. Should any portion of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such 

determination shall not affect the remaining terms and provisions of this 

ordinance, all of which  are hereby deemed separable. 

 

4. All orders, resolutions, and enactments of Anderson County Council 

inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby 

repealed, revoked, and rescinded. 

 

5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and 

after third reading and enactment by Anderson County Council.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance #2021-065 

Page 3 of 3 

Highway 81 N 

 
 

ATTEST:  Ordinance 202X-XXX 

 

 

 

_____________________________         __________________________________   

Rusty Burns     Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 

Anderson County Administrator 

 

 

 

_____________________________    

Renee Watt      

Clerk to Council 

              

   

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

        

 

 

     

Anderson County Attorney  

     

 

1st Reading:      November 2, 2021 

 

2nd Reading:      November 16, 2021 

 

3rd Reading:  December 7, 2021 

 

Public Hearing:  November 16, 2021 

 

 

 

 

























ORDINANCE NO. 2021-070 

 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER OF REAL PROPERTY LOCATED 

AT 29 MCALISTER STREET, WILLIAMSTON, SOUTH CAROLINA (TMS NO. 245-18-

01-035) TO THE TOWN OF WILLIAMSTON; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED 

THERETO. 

 

 WHEREAS, Anderson County currently owns a tract of real property (the “Property”) 

located at 29 McAlister Street within the Town limits of Williamston and further identified by Tax 

Map Number 245-18-01-035; 

 WHEREAS, Anderson County acquired the Property by Quitclaim Deed from Anderson 

Homes, LLC dated July 22, 2019 and recorded in the Register of Deeds office in Book 14012 at 

page 00133; 

 WHEREAS, Anderson Homes, LLC had acquired the property by a Tax Deed dated 

March 15, 2019, and recorded in the Register of Deeds Office in Book 13813 at page 00087; 

 WHEREAS, the property is currently in a state of disrepair and the Town of Williamston 

desires to obtain the property with plans to improve the appearance of and promote a better use of 

the Property consistent with land use in the area; 

 WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina, acting by and through its County Council, 

is authorized under Title 4 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, as amended, to lease, sell, or 

otherwise dispose of real and personal property. 

  NOW THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council in meeting 

duly assembled that: 

  1. The Anderson County Council hereby approves the transfer of the real 

property located at 29 McAlister Street; Williamston, South Carolina, TMS No.: 245-18-01-035 

to the Town of Williamston for use for municipal purposes. The Chairman of County Council and 

the County Administrator are hereby authorized, empowered, and directed to execute, 



acknowledge, and deliver all documents in the name of and on behalf of the County to carry out 

the transaction contemplated by this Ordinance, including without limitation deeds, affidavits, 

settlement statements, and other such documents necessary and appropriate to the transfer of the 

property. 

 2. The remaining terms and provisions of the Anderson County Code of Ordinances 

not revised or affected hereby remain in full force and effect. 

 3. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 

unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the 

remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 

 4. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council 

inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and 

rescinded. 

 5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the Third Reading and 

Enactment by Anderson County Council. 

 

ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this _________ day of ________, 2021. 
 
 
ATTEST:          FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

 
 

Rusty Burns      Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
 
 

Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 
 
 
 

 



 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 
 
 
 

1st  Reading:__________________ 

2
nd

Reading:___________________ 

3
rd Reading:  _________________ 

 
Public Hearing: ________________ 
 

 

 



NPGVL1:2122448.1  

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-071 
 
 AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY 

OF AN AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN ANDERSON COUNTY, 
SOUTH CAROLINA AND [PROJECT AARDVARK], WITH RESPECT TO 
CERTAIN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY IN THE COUNTY, 
WHEREBY SUCH PROPERTY WILL BE SUBJECT TO CERTAIN 
PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES, INCLUDING THE PROVISION OF 
CERTAIN SPECIAL SOURCE CREDITS; AND OTHER MATTERS 
RELATED THERETO. (TITLE ONLY)

 



RESOLUTION NO. R2021-053 

 

A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT REDISTRICTING CRITERIA FOR ANDERSON 

COUNTY COUNCIL DISTRICTS BASED UPON THE 2020 U.S. CENSUS; AND OTHER 

MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

 

 WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina (the “County”) is a political subdivision 
of the State of South Carolina; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Anderson County Council is responsible for County Council redistricting in 
conjunction with the 2020 Census; and 
 
 WHEREAS, County Council has determined that certain criteria should be followed in 
the development of the Redistricting Plan for Anderson County Council Districts and desires to 
publicly express and endorse those criteria. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Anderson County Council 
in meeting duly assembled, that: 
 
 1. Anderson County Council hereby adopts the following criteria with which it will 
develop the redistricting Plan based upon the 2020 Census Figures: 
 

• Adhere to the court ordered constitutional requirements of one person, one vote and 
do so by following constitutionally mandated equal protection requirements and 
accepted population variances; 

• Adhere to all applicable sections of the 1965 Voting Rights Act, as amended, and 
the controlling court decisions thereunder; 

• Ensure that parts of proposed Districts are contiguous; 
• Respect Communities of Interest; 
• Attempt to maintain constituent consistency; 
• To the extent practicable, ensure that the districts are geographically compact; 
• Seek to avoid splitting voting precincts; and  
• Solicit public input. 

 
 2. This Resolution shall take effect and be in force immediately upon enactment. 
 
 RESOLVED in meeting duly assembled this ____ day of November, 2021. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ATTEST: 

 
              
Rusty Burns      Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator   
    
       
Renee Watts 
Clerk to County Council 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 
       
Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 
 
 
  






	Agenda November 2, 2021
	2a R2021-052
	3 Minutes 10/19
	5 Finance Committee Agenda
	6a 2021-057
	6b 2021-058
	6c 2021-060
	7a 2021-062
	7b 2021-063
	7c 2021-064
	7d 2021-066
	8a 2021-065
	8b 2021-070
	8c 2021-071
	9a R2021-053
	11a Iva Museum
	11b AC National Federation of Blind



